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THE MULTI-MANAGER UCITS PLATFORM FUND PLC
Directors’ Report
This report covers the finance period from 1 January 2020 to 5 November 2020.
Principal Activity
The Multi-Manager UCITS Platform Fund PLC was incorporated in Ireland on 25th October 2012 and was registered in Ireland by
way of continuation, as an open-ended investment Company and authorised as a UCITS by the Central Bank of Ireland pursuant to
the UCITS Regulations 2011 on 26th July 2013. The Company is constituted as an open-ended umbrella investment company with
variable capital.
At 5 November 2020, the six sub-funds (“the Sub-Funds”) in the Company have been terminated. Details of the Sub-Funds are
below:
Sub-Funds
The Organic Long Short Alpha Fund
The Organic Bond Fund
The Mercantile Diversified Fund
The Mercantile Opportunities Fund
The Long/Short Alpha Fund
The Global Bond Fund

Start Date of
Operations
21 September 2016
2 November 2016
11 June 2018
6 September 2018
1 July 2019
1 July 2019

Date of Termination of
Sub-Funds
5 November 2020
5 November 2020
30 June 2020
30 June 2020
30 September 2019
30 September 2019

Net Assets as at 5
November 2020
-

Sub-Funds
The Organic Long Short Alpha Fund
The Organic Bond Fund
The Mercantile Diversified Fund
The Mercantile Opportunities Fund
The Long/Short Alpha Fund
The Global Bond Fund

Net Assets as at 31
December 2019
USD$178,581
GBP£764,149
GBP£6,410,749
GBP£5,618,704
-

Profit/Loss as at 5
November 2020
US$(178,581)
GBP£(764,149)
GBP£(792,244)
GBP£(1,107,902)
-

Profit/Loss as at 31
December 2019
US$(738,655)
GBP£(8,741,072)
GBP£(2,995)
GBP£345,385
-

Please note that as per Note 13, the NAV as per the Financial statements differs to the dealing NAV due to deferred costs.
Statement on Relevant Audit Information
There is no relevant audit information of which the statutory auditors are unaware. The Directors have taken all steps that they ought
to have taken to make themselves aware of any relevant audit information and they have established that the statutory auditors are
aware of the information.
Establishment of an Audit Committee
The Company has elected not to establish an audit committee as per Section 167(2)(b) of the Companies Act 2014 given the following
reasons:
(a) the nature, scale and complexity of the Company’s business range of services and activities undertaken in the course of that
business;
(b) the financial controls already adopted by the company, as per the Central Bank’s requirements, in respect of internal
controls, internal audit and risk management (each of which are documented in the Company’s UCITS Business Plan);
(c) the resources available to the Company and the expertise of the various third parties engaged to support the Company and
carry out certain functions on its behalf; and
(d) the procedures in place for the review, approval and circulation of the audited financial accounts which are appropriate for
a self-managed investment company such as the Company, pursuant to the UCITS Regulations.
Corporate Governance Statement
The Board has adopted the voluntary Irish Funds Corporate Governance Code for Collective Investment Schemes and Management
Companies (the “Code”). The Board has reviewed and assessed the measures included in the Code and considers its corporate
governance practices and procedures since its adoption of the Code as consistent therewith. Currently the Directors are comprised of
three non-executive Directors. Details of the current Directors are set out in the Management and Administration section on page 2.
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THE MULTI-MANAGER UCITS PLATFORM FUND PLC
Directors’ Report (continued)
Connected Parties
In accordance with the requirements of the Central Bank of Ireland 2019 Regulations, all transactions carried out with the Fund by
the promoter, director, investment adviser and associates/group companies ("connected parties") must be carried out as if negotiated
at arm's length and be in the best interests of the shareholders. The Manager is satisfied that there are arrangements in place, evidenced
by written procedures to ensure that the obligations set out in the UCITS Notices are applied to all transactions with connected parties
and that transactions with connected parties entered into during the financial period complied with the obligations set out in the
Central Bank of Ireland 2019 Regulations.
Directors
The names of the persons who were Directors at any time during the financial period ended 5 November 2020 are set out on page 2
of this report. Unless indicated, the Directors served for the entire period. In accordance with the Articles of Association the current
Directors shall continue in office. No Directors or Secretaries have an interest or debenture held in the Company.
Directors’ Statement on Adequate Accounting Records
To ensure compliance regarding the keeping of accounting records in accordance with the requirements of Section 281 to 285 of the
Companies Act, 2014, the Directors of the Company have employed accounting personnel with appropriate expertise. The
Company’s financial records are maintained by Apex Fund Services (Ireland) Limited, Block 5, Irish Life Centre, Abbey Street
Lower, Dublin 1, Ireland, D01 P767.
Independent Auditors
Being the last audit of the Company, the auditors, Deloitte LLP, have signified their willingness to resign from office after the
approval of the financial statements in accordance with Section 400 of the Companies Act 2014.
Dividends
There have been no dividends declared during the financial period ended 5 November 2020 (year ended 31 December 2019: NIL).
Significant Events during the reporting period
The Significant events during the reporting period are detailed in Note 14.
Events after the reporting period
The events after the reporting period are detailed in Note 15.
Review of Business
An overview of the industry and performance of the Sub-Funds are detailed in the Investment Manager’s Report on page 7. The
Statement of Financial Position as at 5 November and the results for the period are set out on pages 12-16.
Principal Risk & Uncertainties
An investment in the Company involves a high degree of risk including, but not limited to, the risks as outlined in the prospectus.
An investment in the Company is only suitable for investors who are in a position to take such risk. There can be no assurance that
the Company will achieve its objective and the value of the shares can go down as well as up. The principal risks and uncertainties
faced by the Company are market price risk, foreign currency risk, liquidity risk, credit risk and interest rate risk which are outlined
in Note 8.
Future Developments
During the period ended 5 November 2020, the two active sub funds were terminated. Following the termination, the Board of
Directors of the Company in conjunction with the Manager considered the illiquid nature of securities in Organic Bond and the
Organic Long/Short Sub-Funds and the non-viability of continuing the Company, resolved to redeem the Shares, terminate the SubFunds, liquidate the Company and seek revocation of authorisation from the Central Bank.
Going Concern
The Board of Directors of the Company in conjunction with the Manager took the decision that it is no longer financially viable to
continue to operate the Company for the foreseeable future. For this reason, these financial statements have been prepared on a basis
other than that of a going concern. Further details are shown in notes 14 and 15.
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THE MULTI-MANAGER UCITS PLATFORM FUND PLC
Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities
The directors are responsible for preparing the Directors’ Report and the financial statements in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the European Union and with the Companies Act, 2014.
Irish company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year which give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the company and of the profit or loss of the company for that period. In preparing those financial statements, the
directors are required to:


Select suitable accounting policies and then apply then consistently;



Make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and



Prepare the financial statements on the non-going concern basis as the Company will not continue in business.



State whether the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the applicable accounting standards,
identify those standards, and note the effect and the reasons for any material departure from those standards

The directors are responsible for keeping proper books of account which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial
position of the company and to enable them to ensure that the financial statements are prepared in accordance with accounting
standards generally accepted in Ireland and comply with Irish statute comprising the Companies Acts 2014 and with the European
Communities (Undertakings for Collective Investment in Transferable Securities) Regulations, 2011 (the “UCITS Regulation 2011”)
and the Central Bank (Supervision and Enforcement) Act 2013 (Section 48(1)) (Undertakings for Collective Investment in
Transferable Securities) Regulations, 2019 (the “Central Bank UCITS Regulations 2019”) and the Listing Rules of the Irish Stock
Exchange. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the
prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities. In this regard the Directors have appointed Apex Fund Services (Ireland)
Limited for the purposes of maintaining proper books of account. Accordingly the books of account are kept at the following address:
Apex Fund Services (Ireland) Limited, 2nd Floor, Block 5, Irish Life Centre, Abbey Street Lower, Dublin 1, Ireland, D01 P767.
The Directors are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention
and detection of fraud and other irregularities. The Directors have entrusted the assets of the Company to the Custodian for
safekeeping. In this regard, the Directors have appointed European Depositary Bank SA, Dublin Branch, as Depositary. The address
at which this business is conducted is as follows: 2nd Floor, Block 5, Irish Life Centre, Abbey Street Lower, Dublin 1, Ireland, D01
P767.
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THE MULTI-MANAGER UCITS PLATFORM FUND PLC
Investment Manager’s Report
On 23 March 2020, the Board of the Company and European and Global Investments Limited (the “Manager”), as manager of the
Mercantile Sub-Funds, were informed that, due to financial circumstances and developments beyond its control, the Investment
Manager of the Sub-Funds, Agincourt Financial Limited, anticipated entering into an orderly voluntary winding up of its legal limited
company status as from the 17th April 2020.
The Board of the Company in conjunction with the Manager took the decision that it is no longer financially viable to continue to
operate the Mercantile Diversified Fund and the Mercantile Opportunities Fund. The positions held were accordingly wound down
and the Sub-Funds were fully redeemed on 30th June 2020.
Due to the illiquid nature of large portion of the assets held in the Organic Bond and Organic Long/Short Fund in 2018, it was
decided to suspend the subscriptions and redemptions of these Sub-Funds. The net asset calculation of the Organic Bond Fund and
the Organic Long/Short Alpha Fund were suspended on 14 November 2018. As a result of inability to sell some of the assets of these
Sub-Funds, two new Sub-Funds were created, the Long/Short Alpha Fund and the Global Bond Fund were authorised by the Central
Bank of Ireland on the 15th April 2019, the liquid assets of the old Funds were transferred accordingly with the conversion of
shareholders holding in the old Sub-Funds for corresponding shares in the new Sub-Funds. These Sub-Funds were terminated on
30th September 2019.
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The Multi-Manager UCITS Platform Fund Plc
Report of the Depositary to the Shareholders
For the period 1st January 2020 to 5th November 2020

Report of the Depositary to the Shareholders
We have enquired into the conduct of the The Multi-Manager UCITS Platform Fund Plc (the “Fund”) for the period
1st January 2020 to 5th November 2020 in our capacity as Depositary to the Fund.
This report including the opinion has been prepared for and solely for the Shareholders in the Fund, in accordance
with Part 5 of the European Communities (Undertakings for Collective Investment in Transferable Securities)
Regulations 2011, as amended, (“The UCITS Regulations”), and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving this
opinion, accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is shown.
Responsibilities of the Depositary
Our duties and responsibilities are outlined in Part 5 of the UCITS Regulations. One of those duties is to enquire
into the conduct of the Fund in each annual accounting period and report thereon to the Shareholders. Our report
shall state whether, in our opinion, the Fund has been managed in that period in accordance with the provisions of
the Fund’s Instrument of Incorporation of the Fund and the UCITS Regulations. It is the overall responsibility of the
Fund to comply with these provisions. If the Fund has not so complied, we as Depositary must state why this is the
case and outline the steps which we have taken to rectify the situation
Basis of Depositary Opinion
The Depositary conducts such reviews as it, in its reasonable opinion, considers necessary in order to comply with
its duties as outlined in Part 5 of the UCITS Regulations and to ensure that, in all material respects, the Fund has
been managed (i) in accordance with the limitations imposed on its investment and borrowing powers by the
provisions of the Instrument of Incorporation of the Fund and the appropriate regulations and (ii) or otherwise in
accordance with the Fund constitutional documentation and the appropriate regulations.
The Depositary has noted that all sub-funds of The Multi-Manager UCITS Platform Fund Plc have been terminated
as of 5th November 2020. The Board of the Company in conjunction with the Manager took the decision to liquidate
the Company and seek revocation of authorisation from the Central Bank.
Opinion
In our opinion, the Fund has been managed during the period, in all material respects:
(i)

(ii)

in accordance with the limitations imposed on the investment and borrowing powers of the Fund by
the Instrument of Incorporation of the Fund, the UCITS Regulations and the Central Bank UCITS
Regulations, and
or otherwise in accordance with the provisions of the Instrument of Incorporation of the Fund, the
UCITS Regulations and the Central Bank UCITS Regulations.

For and on behalf of
European Depositary Bank, Dublin Branch

____________________________

____________________________

Authorised Signatory

Authorised Signatory

European Depositary Bank SA, Dublin Branch
2nd Floor Block 5, Irish Life Centre
Abbey St Lower Dublin 1
Ireland
Phone (+353) 1 9203100
Registered in Ireland with No: 909107

Deloitte Ireland LLP
Chartered Accountants &
Statutory Audit Firm

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
THE MULTI-MANAGER UCITS PLATFORM FUND PLC
Report on the audit of the financial statements
Opinion on the financial statements of the Multi-Manager UCITS Platform Fund Plc (“the company”)
In our opinion the financial statements:

give a true and fair view of the assets, liabilities and financial position of the company as at 5 November
2020 and of the loss for the financial year then ended; and

have been properly prepared in accordance with the relevant financial reporting framework, the applicable
Regulations and, in particular, with the requirements of the Companies Act 2014.
The financial statements we have audited comprise:






the
the
the
the
the

Statement of Financial Position;
Statement of Comprehensive Income;
Statement of Changes in Net Assets attributable to holders of Redeemable Participating Shares;
Statement of Cash Flows; and
related notes 1 to 16, including a summary of significant accounting policies as set out in note 2.

The relevant financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is the Companies Act 2014
and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the European Union (“the relevant financial
reporting framework”).
The applicable regulations that have been applied in their preparation is the European Communities (Undertakings
for Collective Investment in Transferable Securities) Regulations, 2011 and Central Bank (Supervision and
Enforcement) Act 2013 (Section 48(1)) (Undertakings for Collective Investment in Transferable Securities)
Regulations, 2019 (“the applicable Regulations”).
Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (Ireland) (ISAs (Ireland)) and
applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are described below in the “Auditor's responsibilities for
the audit of the financial statements” section of our report.
We are independent of the company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the financial statements in Ireland, including the Ethical Standard issued by the Irish Auditing and Accounting
Supervisory Authority, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
Emphasis of matter – Financial statements prepared on a basis other than that of going concern
In forming our opinion on the financial statements, which is not modified, we have considered the adequacy of the
disclosure made in note 2 to the financial statements, which explains that the financial statements have been
prepared on a basis other than that of a going concern.
Emphasis of matter – Valuation of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
In forming our opinion on the financial statements, which is not modified, we have considered the adequacy of
disclosures set out in Note 8 to the financial statements regarding the valuation of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss. The company has financial assets at fair value through profit or loss valued at €Nil as of 5
November 2020, the fair values of which have been estimated by management in the absence of readily
determinable market prices. The information used in carrying out the valuation of the level 3 instruments as at 5
November 2020 is based on:

Market price sources (Bloomberg), broker valuations and market liquidity premia. Such information is
checked against other data relating to the security, such as the status of coupon payments.

In the absence of such information a credit risk of assessment has been carried out using the most up to
date information on the issuer and the underlying collateral. Where possible news on the issuer has been
collated and updated periodically

The valuations also implicitly take account of estimates of default probability and recovery rate based on
market assumptions for similar assets.

Sensitivity to assumptions have also where relevant been reported

/Continued on next page
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Deloitte Ireland LLP
Chartered Accountants &
Statutory Audit Firm

/Continued from previous page
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
THE MULTI-MANAGER UCITS PLATFORM FUND PLC
If other prices were available for the investments, they may be different to those presented and those differences
could be material. Therefore, the realisable value of the company’s financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss may differ significantly from the fair values recorded. The ultimate outcome of these uncertainties cannot at
present be determined.
Other information
The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included
in the Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements, other than the financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent
otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material
inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material
misstatement in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work
we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required
to report that fact.
We have nothing to report in this regard.
Responsibilities of directors
As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities, the directors are responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view and otherwise
comply with the Companies Act 2014, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the company’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the company or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with ISAs (Ireland) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs (Ireland), we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

/Continued on next page
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF THE MULTI-MANAGER UCITS PLATFORM
FUND PLC
•

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of the auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
entity (or where relevant, the group) to cease to continue as a going concern.

•

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that the auditor
identifies during the audit.
This report is made solely to the company’s shareholders, as a body, in accordance with Section 391 of the Companies
Act 2014. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s shareholders those matters
we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by
law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the company and the company’s shareholders as
a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.
Report on other legal and regulatory requirements
Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2014
Based solely on the work undertaken in the course of the audit, we report that:
•
•
•
•

We have obtained all the information and explanations which we consider necessary for the purposes of our audit.
In our opinion the accounting records of the company were sufficient to permit the financial statements to be
readily and properly audited.
The financial statements are in agreement with the accounting records.
In our opinion the information given in the directors’ report is consistent with the financial statements and the
directors’ report has been prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2014.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
Based on the knowledge and understanding of the company and its environment obtained in the course of the audit,
we have not identified material misstatements in the directors' report.
We have nothing to report in respect of the provisions in the Companies Act 2014 which require us to report to you if,
in our opinion, the disclosures of directors’ remuneration and transactions specified by law are not made.

Christian MacManus
For and on behalf of Deloitte Ireland LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Audit Firm
Deloitte & Touche House, Earlsfort Terrace, Dublin 2
5 February 2021

THE MULTI-MANAGER UCITS PLATFORM FUND PLC
Statement of Financial Position
As at 5 November 2020

ORGANIC
BOND
Fund Total*
2020
GBP

ORGANIC
LONG/SHORT
ALPHA
Fund Total*
2020
US$

THE
MERCANTILE
DIVERSIFIED
Fund Total*
2020
GBP

4
5

54,296
54,296

31,244
31,244

71,127
71,127

3
3
3
3
3

7,102
3,128
6,600
2,228
1,399
33,839

9,830
4,503
7,945
3,394
2,014
3,558

200
3,128
6,387
1,399
60,013

54,296

31,244

71,127

-

-

-

Note
s
Assets
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Cash and cash equivalents
Interest receivable
Dividend receivable
Prepayments and other receivables
Total Assets
Liabilities
Management fees payable
Depositary fees payable
Directors fees payable
Audit fees payable
Administration fees payable
Liquidation fee payable
Other accounts payable and accrued expenses
Total Liabilities (excluding net assets attributable
to Holders of Redeemable Participating Shares)
Net assets attributable to Holders of Redeemable
Participating Shares
* Start date of operations and date of termination are detailed on page 3.

The accompanying notes on pages 32 to 90 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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THE MULTI-MANAGER UCITS PLATFORM FUND PLC
Statement of Financial Position (continued)
As at 5 November 2020

Notes
Assets
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Cash and cash equivalents
Interest receivable
Dividend receivable
Prepayments and other receivables
Total Assets
Liabilities
Management fees payable
Depositary fees payable
Directors fees payable
Audit fees payable
Administration fees payable
Liquidation fee payable
Other accounts payable and accrued expenses

THE
THE
MERANTILE LONG/SHORT
OPPORTUNITIES
ALPHA
Fund Total*
Fund Total*
2020
2020
GBP
GBP

THE
GLOBAL
BOND
Fund Total*
2020
GBP

4
5

69,321
69,321

-

-

3
3
3
3
3

200
3,128
6,711
1,399
57,883

-

-

69,321

-

-

-

-

-

Total Liabilities (excluding net assets attributable
to Holders of Redeemable Participating Shares)
Net assets attributable to Holders of Redeemable
Participating Shares
* Start date of operations and date of termination are detailed on page 3.

The accompanying notes on pages 32 to 90 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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THE MULTI-MANAGER UCITS PLATFORM FUND PLC
Statement of Financial Position (continued)
As at 31 December 2019

ORGANIC
BOND
Fund Total*
2019
GBP

ORGANIC
LONG/SHORT
ALPHA
Fund Total*
2019
US$

THE
MERCANTILE
DIVERSIFIED
Fund Total*
2019
GBP

4
5

734,993
41,638
776,631

152,151
42,130
194,281

6,102,306
325,908
8,725
9,611
36
6,446,586

3
3
3
3
3

285
6,349
705
5,143

81
8,422
936
6,261

2,805
8,168
3,003
6,349
3,596
11,916

Total Liabilities (excluding net assets attributable
to Holders of Redeemable Participating Shares)

12,482

15,700

35,837

Net assets attributable to Holders of Redeemable
Participating Shares

764,149

178,581

6,410,749

Notes
Assets
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Cash and cash equivalents
Interest receivable
Dividend receivable
Prepayments and other receivables
Total Assets
Liabilities
Management fees payable
Depositary fees payable
Directors fees payable
Audit fees payable
Administration fees payable
Other accounts payable and accrued expenses

* Start date of operations and date of termination are detailed on page 3.

The accompanying notes on pages 32 to 90 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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THE MULTI-MANAGER UCITS PLATFORM FUND PLC
Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the financial period from 1 January 2020 to 5 November 2020

Notes
Income
Interest income
Dividend income
Net loss on financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss
Net foreign currency exchange
Other income
Investment Loss

ORGANIC
BOND
Fund Total*

ORGANIC
LONG/SHORT
ALPHA
Fund Total*

THE
MERCANTILE
DIVERSIFIED
Fund Total*

For the period
ended 5
November 2020
GBP

For the period
ended 5
November 2020
US$

For the period
ended 5
November 2020
GBP

-

4,684
-

15,561
22,433

4

(916,115)
180,840
35,192
(700,083)

(142,648)
(11,944)
18,363
(131,545)

(788,689)
138,835
11,709
(600,151)

3
3
3
3
3
3

(8,602)
(3,128)
(8,354)
(7,473)
(1,399)
(35,110)
(64,066)

(10,155)
(4,503)
(9,785)
(9,472)
(2,014)
(11,107)
(47,036)

(13,317)
(1,902)
(19,421)
(14,684)
(6,868)
(22,299)
(32,015)
(78,262)
(476)
(189,244)

Operating Loss

(764,149)

(178,581)

(789,395)

Finance Costs
Interest expense
Loss before taxation

(764,149)

(178,581)

(789,395)

Operating Expenses
Management fees
Performance fees
Depositary fees
Directors’ fees
Audit fees
Administration fees
Liquidation fees
Other fees and expenses
Transaction costs
Operating Expenses

3

Withholding tax

-

-

(2,849)

Loss after taxation

(764,149)

(178,581)

(792,244)

Decrease in net assets attributable to Holders of
Redeemable Participating shares from operations

(764,149)

(178,581)

(792,244)

* Start date of operations and date of termination are detailed on page 3.

The accompanying notes on pages 32 to 90 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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THE MULTI-MANAGER UCITS PLATFORM FUND PLC
Statement of Comprehensive Income (continued)
For the financial period from 1 January 2020 to 5 November 2020

Notes
Income
Interest income
Dividend income
Net loss on financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss
Net foreign currency exchange
Other income
Investment (Loss)/Profit

THE
MERANTILE
OPPORTUNITIES
Fund Total*

THE
LONG/SHORT
ALPHA
Fund Total*

THE
GLOBAL
BOND
Fund Total*

For the period
ended 5
November 2020
GBP

For the period
ended 5
November 2020
GBP

For the period
ended 5
November 2020
GBP

155
23,924

-

-

4

(1,023,196)
65,542
7,839
(925,736)

-

-

3
3
3
3
3
3

(10,958)
(1,877)
(18,978)
(14,684)
(7,125)
(22,299)
(1,258)
(103,708)
(277)
(181,164)

-

-

Operating Loss

(1,106,900)

-

-

Finance Costs
Interest expense
Loss before taxation

(1,106,900)

-

-

(1,002)

-

-

Loss after taxation

(1,107,902)

-

-

Decrease in net assets attributable to Holders of
Redeemable Participating shares from operations

(1,107,902)

-

-

Operating Expenses
Management fees
Performance fees
Depositary fees
Directors’ fees
Audit fees
Administration fees
Liquidation fees
Other fees and expenses
Transaction costs
Operating Expenses

3

Withholding tax

* Start date of operations and date of termination are detailed on page 3.

The accompanying notes on pages 32 to 90 form an integral part of these financial statements.
18

THE MULTI-MANAGER UCITS PLATFORM FUND PLC
Statement of Comprehensive Income (continued)
For the financial period from 1 January 2020 to 5 November 2020

Notes
Income
Interest income
Dividend income
Net loss on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Net foreign currency exchange
Other income
Investment Loss

Company Total
For the period
ended 5
November 2020
US$

Company Total
For the year
ended 31
December 2019
US$

24,838
59,448
(3,641,011)
(79,700)
88,562
(3,547,863)

142,784
460,840
(15,169,831)
5,470,542
24,960
(9,070,705)

(31,130)
(4,846)
(70,428)
(46,176)
(38,442)
(76,247)
(46,477)
(289,491)
(965)
(604,202)

(365,331)
(169,081)
(43,739)
(33,688)
(186,663)
(257,379)
(98,989)
(1,154,870)

Operating Loss

(4,152,065)

(10,225,575)

Finance Costs
Interest expense
Dividend expense
Loss before taxation

(4,152,065)

(549,757)
(10,775,332)

(4,939)

(39,121)

Loss after taxation

(4,157,004)

(10,814,453)

Decrease in net assets attributable to Holders of Redeemable
Participating shares from operations

(4,157,004)

(10,814,453)

Operating Expenses
Management fees
Performance fees
Depositary fees
Directors’ fees
Audit fees
Administration fees
Liquidation fees
Other fees and expenses
Transaction costs
Operating Expenses

4

3
3
3
3
3
3
3

Withholding tax

The accompanying notes on pages 32 to 90 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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THE MULTI-MANAGER UCITS PLATFORM FUND PLC
Statement of Comprehensive Income (continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2019

Notes
Income
Interest income
Dividend income
Net loss on financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss
Net foreign currency exchange
Other income
Investment (Loss)/Profit

ORGANIC
BOND
Fund Total*

ORGANIC
LONG/SHORT
ALPHA
Fund Total*

THE
MERCANTILE
DIVERSIFIED
Fund Total*

For the year
ended 31
December 2019
GBP

For the year
ended 31
December 2019
US$

For the year
ended 31
December 2019
GBP

26,891
24,855

27,436
76,204

58,176
142,707

4

(10,833,824)
2,713,715
2,939
(8,065,424)

(897,485)
234,560
19,015
(540,270)

(805,786)
832,505
27
227,629

3
3
3
3
3
3

(166,919)
(24,384)
(5,500)
(6,349)
(19,112)
(21,949)
(13,784)
(257,997)

(53,157)
(19,948)
(6,254)
(8,422)
(33,258)
(38,253)
(7,942)
(167,234)

(35,557)
(40,671)
(8,790)
(6,349)
(38,847)
(57,121)
(30,577)
(217,912)

Operating (Loss)/Profit

(8,323,421)

(707,504)

9,717

Finance Costs
Interest expense
(Loss)/profit before taxation

(414,136)
(8,737,557)

(19,822)
(727,326)

9,717

(3,515)

(11,329)

(12,712)

Loss after taxation

(8,741,072)

(738,655)

(2,995)

Decrease in net assets attributable to Holders
of Redeemable Participating shares from operations

(8,741,072)

(738,655)

(2,995)

Operating Expenses
Management fees
Depositary fees
Directors’ fees
Audit fees
Administration fees
Other fees and expenses
Transaction costs
Operating Expenses

Withholding tax

* Start date of operations and date of termination are detailed on page 3.

The accompanying notes on pages 32 to 90 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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THE MULTI-MANAGER UCITS PLATFORM FUND PLC
Statement of Comprehensive Income (continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2019

Notes
Income
Interest income
Dividend income
Net gain/(loss) on financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss
Net foreign currency exchange
Other income
Investment Profit/(Loss)

THE
MERANTILE
OPPORTUNITIES
Fund Total*

THE
LONG/SHORT
ALPHA
Fund Total*

THE
GLOBAL
BOND
Fund Total*

For the year
ended 31
December 2019
GBP

For the period
to 31 December
2019
GBP

For the period
to 31 December
2019
GBP

1,937
132,915

773
123

2,409
-

4

498,872
(81,776)
486
552,434

(14,601)
10,681
503
(2,521)

1,122
786
706
5,023

3
3
3
3
3
3

(30,106)
(37,645)
(8,790)
(6,349)
(38,845)
(55,792)
(24,152)
(201,679)

(3,213)
(7,014)
(3,101)
(11,690)
(20,080)
(2,604)
(47,702)

(8,319)
(7,014)
(3,194)
(11,690)
(17,483)
(71)
(47,771)

Operating Profit/(Loss)

350,755

(50,223)

(42,748)

Finance Costs
Interest expense
Profit/(loss) before taxation

350,755

(16)
(50,239)

(42,748)

Operating Expenses
Management fees
Depositary fees
Directors’ fees
Audit fees
Administration fees
Other fees and expenses
Transaction costs
Operating Expenses

Withholding tax

(5,370)

(124)

-

Profit/(loss) after taxation

345,385

(50,363)

(42,748)

Increase/(decrease) in net assets attributable to
Holders of Redeemable Participating shares from
operations

345,385

(50,363)

(42,748)

* Start date of operations and date of termination are detailed on page 3.

The accompanying notes on pages 32 to 90 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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THE MULTI-MANAGER UCITS PLATFORM FUND PLC
Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable Participating Shares
For the financial period from 1 January 2020 to 5 November 2020

ORGANIC
BOND
Fund Total*

ORGANIC
LONG/SHORT
ALPHA
Fund Total*

THE
MERCANTILE
DIVERSIFIED
Fund Total*

For the period
ended 5
November 2020
GBP

For the period
ended 5
November 2020
US$

For the period
ended 5
November 2020
GBP

764,149

178,581

6,410,749

-

-

Net assets attributable to Holders of Redeemable
Participating Shares at the start of the period
Issue of Redeemable Participating Shares
Redemption of Redeemable Participating Shares
Net decrease from share transactions
Decrease in net assets attributable to Holders of Redeemable
Participating Shares from operations
Net assets attributable to Holders of Redeemable
Participating Shares at the end of the period

(764,149)

-

(178,581)

9,915
(5,628,420)
(5,618,505)

(792,244)

-

* Start date of operations and date of termination are detailed on page 3.
The Share transaction for the period and the balance as at 5 November 2020 are detailed in note 6 of these financial
statements.

The accompanying notes on pages 32 to 90 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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THE MULTI-MANAGER UCITS PLATFORM FUND PLC
Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable Participating Shares
(continued)
For the financial period from 1 January 2020 to 5 November 2020

THE
MERANTILE
OPPORTUNITIES
Fund Total*

THE
LONG/SHORT
ALPHA
Fund Total*

THE
GLOBAL
BOND
Fund Total*

For the period
ended 5
November 2020
GBP

For the period
ended 5
November 2020
GBP

For the period
ended 5
November 2020
GBP

5,618,704

-

-

Issue of Redeemable Participating Shares
Redemption of Redeemable Participating Shares
Net decrease from share transactions

6,887
(4,517,689)
(4,510,802)

-

-

Decrease in net assets attributable to Holders of Redeemable
Participating Shares from operations

(1,107,902)

-

-

-

-

Net assets attributable to Holders of Redeemable
Participating Shares at the start of the period

Net assets attributable to Holders of Redeemable
Participating Shares at the end of the period

-

* Start date of operations and date of termination are detailed on page 3.
The Share transaction for the period and the balance as at 5 November 2020 are detailed in note 6 of these financial
statements.

The accompanying notes on pages 32 to 90 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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THE MULTI-MANAGER UCITS PLATFORM FUND PLC
Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable Participating Shares
(continued)
For the financial period from 1 January 2020 to 5 November 2020

Company Total

Company Total

For the period
ended 5
November 2020
US$

For the year
ended 31
December 2019
US$

Net assets attributable to Holders of Redeemable Participating
Shares at the start of the period/year

17,146,735

56,334,104

Issue of Redeemable Participating Shares
Redemption of Redeemable Participating Shares
Net decrease from share transactions

21,547
(13,011,278)
(12,989,731)

29,039,539
(57,412,455)
(28,372,916)

(4,157,004)

(10,814,453)

Decrease in net assets attributable to Holders of Redeemable
Participating Shares from operations
Net assets attributable to Holders of Redeemable Participating
Shares at the end of the period/year

-

17,146,735

The Share transaction for the period and the balance as at 5 November 2020 are detailed in note 6 of these financial
statements.

The accompanying notes on pages 32 to 90 form an integral part of these financial statements.
24

THE MULTI-MANAGER UCITS PLATFORM FUND PLC
Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable Participating Shares
(continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2019

ORGANIC
BOND
Fund Total*

ORGANIC
LONG/SHORT
ALPHA
Fund Total*

THE
MERCANTILE
DIVERSIFIED
Fund Total*

For the year
ended 31
December 2019
GBP

For the year
ended 31
December 2019
US$

For the year
ended 31
December 2019
GBP

Net assets attributable to Holders of Redeemable
Participating Shares at the start of the year

25,565,835

7,414,222

6,997,635

Issue of Redeemable Participating Shares
Redemption of Redeemable Participating Shares
Net decrease from share transactions

(16,060,614)
(16,060,614)

(6,496,986)
(6,496,986)

838,249
(1,422,140)
(583,891)

(8,741,072)

(738,655)

(2,995)

Decrease in net assets attributable to Holders of Redeemable
Participating Shares from operations
Net assets attributable to Holders of Redeemable
Participating Shares at the end of the year

764,149

178,581

* Start date of operations and date of termination are detailed on page 3.

The accompanying notes on pages 32 to 90 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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6,410,749

THE MULTI-MANAGER UCITS PLATFORM FUND PLC
Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable Participating Shares
(continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2019

THE
MERANTILE
OPPORTUNITIES
Fund Total*

THE
LONG/SHORT
ALPHA
Fund Total*

THE
GLOBAL
BOND
Fund Total*

For the year
ended 31
December 2019
GBP

For the period
to 31 December
2019
GBP

For the period
to 31 December
2019
GBP

5,817,105

-

-

Net assets attributable to Holders of Redeemable
Participating Shares at the start of the year/period
Issue of Redeemable Participating Shares
Redemption of Redeemable Participating Shares
Net (decrease)/increase from share transactions
Increase/(decrease) in net assets attributable to Holders of
Redeemable Participating Shares from operations
Net assets attributable to Holders of Redeemable
Participating Shares at the end of the year/period

687,223
(1,231,009)
(543,786)

345,385

5,618,704

5,326,023
(5,275,660)
50,363

16,114,780
(16,072,032)
42,748

(50,363)

(42,748)

-

* Start date of operations and date of termination are detailed on page 3.

The accompanying notes on pages 32 to 90 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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THE MULTI-MANAGER UCITS PLATFORM FUND PLC
Statement of Cash Flows
For the financial period from 1 January 2020 to 5 November 2020

Notes

ORGANIC
ORGANIC LONG/SHORT
BOND
ALPHA
Fund Total*
Fund Total*

THE
MERCANTILE
DIVERSIFIED
Fund Total*

For the period For the period
ended 5
ended 5
November 2020 November 2020
GBP
US$

For the period
ended 5
November 2020
GBP

Reconciliation of decrease in net assets
attributable to Holders of Redeemable
Participating Shares from operations to net
cash from/(used in) operating activities
Decrease in net assets attributable to Holders of
Redeemable Participating Shares from operations
Net loss on financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss
Decrease in prepayments
Decrease in interest receivable
Decrease in dividend receivable
Decrease in management fees payable
Increase/(decrease) in depositary fees payable
Increase in directors’ fees payable
Increase/(decrease) in audit fees payable
Increase/(decrease) in administration fees payable
Increase/(decrease) in other accounts payable and
accrued expenses
Increase in liquidation fee payable
Payment for purchases of investments
Proceeds from disposals of investments
Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from issuance of Redeemable
Participating Shares
Payments on redemption of Redeemable
Participating Shares
Net cash flows used in financing activities
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash
equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period
Effect of exchange rate changes
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period

5

Supplemental Information to the Statement of Cash Flows
Interest received during the period
Dividend received during the period

(764,149)

(178,581)

(792,244)

734,993
6,817
3,128
251
1,523

152,151
9,749
4,503
(477)
2,458

719,187
36
8,725
9,611
(2,805)
(7,968)
125
38
(3,596)

28,696
1,399
12,658

(2,703)
2,014
(10,886)

48,097
1,399
(5,957,079)
11,340,198
5,363,724

-

-

-

-

9,915
(5,628,420)
(5,618,505)

12,658
41,638
-

(10,886)
42,130
-

(254,781)
325,908
-

54,296

31,244

71,127

-

4,684
-

24,286
32,044

* Start date of operations and date of termination are detailed on page 3.

The accompanying notes on pages 32 to 90 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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THE MULTI-MANAGER UCITS PLATFORM FUND PLC
Statement of Cash Flows (continued)
For the financial period from 1 January 2020 to 5 November 2020

THE
THE
MERANTILE LONG/SHORT
OPPORTUNITIES
ALPHA
Fund Total*
Fund Total*

Notes

For the period
ended 5
November 2020
GBP

For the period
ended 5
November 2020
GBP

THE
GLOBAL
BOND
Fund Total*
For the period
ended 5
November 2020
GBP

Reconciliation of decrease in net assets
attributable to Holders of Redeemable
Participating Shares from operations to net
cash from/(used in) operating activities
Decrease in net assets attributable to Holders of
Redeemable Participating Shares from operations

(1,107,902)

Net loss on financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss
Decrease in prepayments
Decrease in interest receivable
Decrease in dividend receivable
Decrease in management fees payable
Decrease in depositary fees payable
Increase/(decrease) in directors’ fees payable
Increase in audit fees payable
Decrease in administration fees payable
Increase/(decrease) in other accounts payable and
accrued expenses
Increase in liquidation fee payable
Payment for purchases of investments
Proceeds from disposals of investments
Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from issuance of Redeemable
Participating Shares
Payments on redemption of Redeemable
Participating Shares
Net cash flows used in financing activities

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period

509
(6,540)
(1,904)
-

581
(219)
(6,540)
(2,575)
-

46,993
1,399
(5,042,794)
9,109,320
4,040,540

(15,077)
(23,012)

(31,757)
(40,510)

(4,517,689)
(4,510,802)
(470,262)
539,583
5

Supplemental Information to the Statement of Cash Flows
Interest received during the period
Dividend received during the period

-

1,054,960
36
796
(2,444)
(16,715)
125
362
(3,596)

6,887

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period
Effect of exchange rate changes

-

-

-

-

-

(23,012)
23,012
-

(40,510)
40,510
-

69,321

-

-

155
24,720

1
-

12
-

* Start date of operations and date of termination are detailed on page 3.

The accompanying notes on pages 32 to 90 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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THE MULTI-MANAGER UCITS PLATFORM FUND PLC
Statement of Cash Flows (continued)
For the financial period from 1 January 2020 to 5 November 2020

Notes
Reconciliation of decrease in net assets attributable to
Holders of Redeemable Participating Shares from operations
to net cash from operating activities
Decrease in net assets attributable to Holders of Redeemable
Participating Shares from operations
Net loss/(gain) on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments
Decrease in interest receivable
Decrease in dividend receivable
Decrease in management fees payable
(Decrease)/increase in depositary fees payable
Increase in directors’ fees payable
Increase in audit fees payable
Decrease in administration fees payable
Decrease in due to broker
Increase in other accounts payable and accrued expenses
Increase in liquidation fee payable
Payment for purchases of investments
Proceeds from disposals of investments
Net cash from operating activities
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from issuance of Redeemable Participating Shares
Payments on redemption of Redeemable Participating Shares
Redemption payable
Net cash flows used in financing activities
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period/year
Effect of exchange rate changes
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period/year
Supplemental Information to the Statement of Cash Flows
Interest paid during the period/year
Interest received during the period/year
Dividend received during the period/year

5

Company Total
For the period
ended 5
November 2020
US$

Company Total
For the year
ended 31
December 2019
US$

(4,157,004)

(10,814,453)

3,369,849
1,542
11,572
13,803
(7,251)
(31,416)
2,891
62
(5,096)
96,922
7,474
(14,106,137)
26,224,276
11,421,487

(35,519,376)
(1,441)
1,147,679
9,008
(102,118)
17,279
3,922
11,928
(28,496)
(84,898)
6,517
(35,636,906)
104,145,513
23,154,158

21,547
(13,011,278)
(12,989,731)

29,039,539
(57,412,455)
(2,417)
(28,375,333)

(1,568,244)
1,329,504
525,099

(5,221,175)
7,273,992
(723,313)

286,359

1,329,504

36,426
73,251

(549,757)
1,290,463
469,848

The accompanying notes on pages 32 to 90 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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THE MULTI-MANAGER UCITS PLATFORM FUND PLC
Statement of Cash Flows (continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2019

ORGANIC
ORGANIC LONG/SHORT
BOND
ALPHA
Fund Total*
Fund Total*

Notes

For the year
ended 31
December 2019
GBP

For the year
ended 31
December 2019
US$

THE
MERCANTILE
DIVERSIFIED
Fund Total*
For the year
ended 31
December 2019
GBP

Reconciliation of decrease in net assets
attributable to Holders of Redeemable
Participating Shares from operations to net
cash from/(used in) operating activities
Decrease in net assets attributable to Holders of
Redeemable Participating Shares from operations
Net (gain)/loss on financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments
Decrease in interest receivable
Decrease/(increase) in dividend receivable
(Decrease)/increase in management fees payable
(Decrease)/increase in depositary fees payable
(Decrease)/increase in directors’ fees payable
(Decrease)/increase in audit fees payable
Decrease in administration fees payable
Decrease in due to broker
(Decrease)/increase in other accounts payable and
accrued expenses
Payment for purchases of investments
Proceeds from disposals of investments
Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from issuance of Redeemable
Participating Shares
Payments on redemption of Redeemable
Participating Shares
Redemption payable
Net cash flows used in financing activities

(738,655)

(2,995)

(28,811,168)
860,975
5,298
(67,201)
(4,134)
(2,061)
(390)
(6,552)
-

622,907
101
36,793
7,272
(17,761)
(9,131)
(2,579)
(168)
(8,635)
-

962,450
(36)
10,935
(2,718)
224
1,940
1,129
4,552
(4,675)
(11,326)

(36,196)
(7,250,843)
58,314,061
14,260,717

(20,241)
(1,250,336)
6,554,120
5,173,687

3,919
(11,455,423)
10,243,705
(248,319)

-

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Effect of exchange rate changes
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

(8,741,072)

5

Supplemental Information to the Statement of Cash Flows
Interest paid during the year
Interest received during the year
Dividend received during the year

-

838,249

(16,060,614)
(16,060,614)

(6,496,986)
(6,496,986)

(1,422,140)
(583,891)

(1,799,897)
1,841,535
-

(1,323,299)
1,365,429
-

(832,210)
1,158,118
-

41,638

42,130

(414,136)
887,866
30,153

(19,822)
64,229
83,476

* Start date of operations and date of termination are detailed on page 3.

The accompanying notes on pages 32 to 90 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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325,908
69,111
139,989

THE MULTI-MANAGER UCITS PLATFORM FUND PLC
Statement of Cash Flows (continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2019

THE
THE
MERANTILE LONG/SHORT
OPPORTUNITIES
ALPHA
Fund Total*
Fund Total*

Notes

For the year
ended 31
December 2019
GBP

Reconciliation of increase/(decrease) in net
assets attributable to Holders of Redeemable
Participating Shares from operations to net
cash used in operating activities
Increase/(decrease) in net assets attributable to
Holders of Redeemable Participating Shares from
operations
Net (gain)/loss on financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
Increase in prepayments
Decrease in interest receivable
Increase in dividend receivable
Increase in management fees payable
Increase in depositary fees payable
Increase in directors’ fees payable
Increase in audit fees payable
Decrease in administration fees payable
Decrease in due to broker
Increase in other accounts payable and accrued
expenses
Payment for purchases of investments
Proceeds from disposals of investments
Net cash used in operating activities
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from issuance of Redeemable
Participating Shares
Payments on redemption of Redeemable
Participating Shares
Redemption payable
Net cash flows (used in)/provided by financing activities
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year/period
Effect of exchange rate changes
Cash and cash equivalents at end of
year/period

Supplemental Information to the Statement of Cash Flows
Interest paid during the year/period
Interest received during the year/period
Dividend received during the year/period

For the period For the period
to 31 December to 31 December
2019
2019
GBP
GBP

345,385

(50,363)

(42,748)

(414,902)
(36)
(796)
354
8,275
1,129
4,552
(4,675)
(55,282)

19,250
(509)
6,540
1,904
-

(1,122)
(581)
219
6,540
2,575
-

3,404
(7,102,563)
6,664,452
(550,703)

15,077
(1,008,095)
988,845
(27,351)

31,757
(70,335)
71,457
(2,238)

687,223
(1,231,009)
(1,896)
(545,682)
(1,096,385)
1,635,968
-

5

THE
GLOBAL
BOND
Fund Total*

5,326,023

16,114,780

(5,275,660)
50,363

(16,072,032)
42,748

23,012
-

40,510
-

539,583

23,012

40,510

1,937
132,119

(16)
773
123

2,409
-

* Start date of operations and date of termination are detailed on page 3.

The accompanying notes on pages 32 to 90 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the financial period from 1 January 2020 to 5 November 2020
1.

Company information
The Multi-Manager UCITS Platform Fund plc (the “Company”) is an open-ended umbrella investment Company with variable
capital incorporated in Ireland on 25 October 2012 and authorised on 26 July 2013 by the Central Bank of Ireland under the
European Communities (Undertaking for Collective Investments in Transferable Securities) Regulations, 2019 as amended. The
Company is constituted as an umbrella fund insofar as the share capital of the Company will be divided into different classes of
Shares with one or more classes of Shares representing a separate portfolio of assets which will comprise a separate sub-fund of
the Company. Shares of any particular sub-fund may be divided into one or more classes of Shares (“Classes”) to accommodate
differing characteristics attributable to each such different class of Shares. The Prospectus for the Company was issued on 17
July 2014 with an updated version issued on 10 October 2017.
As at 5 November 2020, there were no active sub-funds in existence, the four sub-funds at the beginning of the period terminated
during the period.
On 9 October 2020, the Board of the Company in conjunction with the Manager took the decision that it is no longer financially
viable to continue to operate the Organic Bond Fund and the Organic Long/Short Alpha Fund (the “Sub Funds”). Accordingly,
these Sub Funds ceased operations on 5 November 2020. The Organic Bond Fund was authorised by the Central Bank of Ireland
on the 26th August 2016 and the Organic Long/Short Alpha Fund was authorised by the Central Bank of Ireland on the 5th
December 2014.
On 23 March 2020, the Board of the Company and European and Global Investments Limited (the “Manager”), as manager of
the Mercantile Sub-Funds, were informed that, due to financial circumstances and developments beyond its control, the
Investment Manager of the Sub-Funds, Agincourt Financial Limited, anticipated entering into an orderly voluntary winding up
of its legal limited company status as from the 17th April 2020.
The Board of the Company in conjunction with the Manager took the decision that it is no longer financially viable to continue
to operate the Mercantile Diversified Fund and the Mercantile Opportunities Fund. Accordingly, the Mercantile Diversified
Fund and the Mercantile Opportunities Fund ceased operations on 30th June 2020. The Mercantile Diversified Fund was
authorised by the Central Bank of Ireland on the 23rd September 2015 and the Mercantile Opportunities Fund was authorized
by the Central Bank of Ireland on the 25th April 2018.
Organic Long/Short Alpha Fund
The First Supplement (“The Supplement”) was issued for Organic Long/Short Alpha Fund on 22 April 2016 and further updated
on 25 April 2018 and 4 December 2019. The Supplement contains information relating specifically to the Sub Fund. The Sub
Fund commenced operations on 20 September 2016. The Sub Fund has six share classes, Institutional Shares USD, Institutional
shares GBP (Hedged), Retail shares USD, Retail shares GBP (Hedged), Class U shares and Class Z shares. As at 5 November
2020, two classes were active: Institutional shares GBP and Retail shares GBP. This Sub Fund was suspended for subscriptions
and redemptions on 14th November 2018. The Sub Fund was terminated on 5 November 2020, hence no share was available for
subscription into the Sub-Fund from this date, while the existing outstanding shares were redeemed after the period end.
Organic Bond Fund
The Second Supplement (“The Supplement”) was issued for the Organic Bond Fund on 21 October 2016 and further updated
on 25 April 2018 and 4 December 2019. The Supplement contains information relating specifically to the Sub Fund. The Sub
Fund commenced operations on 2 November 2016. The Sub Fund has seven share classes; Institutional Shares GBP, Institutional
shares USD, Retail shares GBP, Class U shares, Class Z shares, Class USD shares and Class EUR shares. As at 5 November
2020, two classes were active; Class A Institutional shares GBP and Class A Retail shares GBP. This Sub Fund was suspended
for subscriptions and redemptions on 14th November 2018. The Sub Fund was terminated on 5 November 2020, hence no share
was available for subscription into the Sub-Fund from this date, while the existing outstanding shares were redeemed after the
period end.
Mercantile Diversified Fund
The Third Supplement (“The Supplement”) was issued for the Mercantile Diversified Fund on 25 April 2018 and further updated
on 4 December 2019. The Supplement contains information relating specifically to the Sub Fund. The Sub Fund commenced
operations on 11 June 2018. The Sub Fund has three share classes denominated in GBP, Class A Share, Class B Share and Class
C Share. As at 5 November 2020, the Sub Fund has no active share class.
The Mercantile Diversified Fund’s investment objective was to achieve capital growth by investing in a geographically
diversified portfolio of equities, debt securities and Underlying Funds of varying market capitalisation. These investments would
have in the opinion of the Investment Manager, exhibit potential for accelerated growth, high dividend yield or high coupon
yield.
The Sub Fund was terminated on 30 June 2020.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the financial period from 1 January 2020 to 5 November 2020
1.

Company information (continued)
Mercantile Opportunities Fund
The Fourth Supplement (“The Supplement”) was issued for the Mercantile Opportunities Fund on 25 April 2018 on 25 April
2018 and further updated on 4 December 2019. The Supplement contains information relating specifically to the Sub Fund.
The Sub Fund commenced operations on 6 September 2018. The Sub Fund has three share classes denominated in GBP,
Class A Share, Class B Share and Class C Share. As at 5 November 2020, the Sub Fund has no active share class.
The Mercantile Opportunities Fund’s investment objective was to achieve above average return on capital. The Sub Fund
sought to achieve its investment objective by investing in equity and equity- related securities, debt and debt- related securities
and underlying funds. The Fund may invest in a blend of equity, debt securities and underlying funds or may, at any time,
hold up to 100% in a particular asset class.
The Sub Fund was terminated on 30 June 2020.
Long/Short Alpha Fund
The Fifth Supplement (“The Supplement”) was issued for the Long/Short Alpha Fund on 15 April 2019. The Supplement
contains information relating specifically to the Sub Fund. The Sub Fund commenced operations on 1 July 2019. The Sub
Fund has four share classes denominated in GBP, Institutional Shares GBP, Institutional “O” Shares GBP, Retail Shares
GBP and Retail “O” Shares GBP. During the financial year ended 31 December 2019, two classes were issued and fully
redeemed: Institutional “O” Shares GBP and Retail “O” Shares GBP.
The Long/Short Alpha Fund’s investment objective was to achieve capital growth. The Sub Fund will seek to generate capital
growth by gaining exposure to a diversified portfolio of long and short positions of listed global equities.
The Sub Fund was terminated on 30 September 2019.
Global Bond Fund
The Sixth Supplement (“The Supplement”) was issued for the Global Bond Fund on 15 April 2019. The Supplement contains
information relating specifically to the Sub Fund. The Sub Fund commenced operations on 1 July 2019. The Sub Fund has
five share classes; Retail Shares EUR, Institutional Shares GBP, Retail Shares GBP, Institutional “O” Shares GBP and Retail
“O” Shares GBP. During the financial year ended 31 December 2019, two classes were issued and fully redeemed:
Institutional “O” Shares GBP and Retail “O” Shares GBP.
The Global Bond Fund’s investment objective was to achieve a value return on the assets of the Sub Fund at a moderate risk.
The Sub Fund sought to achieve its investment objective by investing mainly in bonds issued by commercial, governmental
or supranational entities domiciled in Europe, the US and Emerging Markets Countries and in equities.
The Sub Fund was terminated on 30 September 2019.
Pursuant to a resolution on 9 October 2020, the Board of Directors of the Company have decided to terminate the Sub Funds,
proceed to liquidation of the Company and seek revocation of authorisation from the Central Bank. Accordingly, these
financial statements have not been prepared on a going concern basis. Assets are stated at their realisable values while
liabilities are stated at the amount they are expected to be discharged as at the date of Statement of Financial Position. These
are in line with fair value and carrying amount described in note 8.

2.

Accounting policies

2.1 Basis of presentation
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) as
issued by International Accounting Standard Board (“IASB”) and adopted by the European Union and Irish Statute
comprising of the Companies Act 2014, the European Communities (Undertakings for Collective Investment in transferable
Securities) Regulations 2011, as amended by the European Communities (Amendment) UCITS Regulations, 2016 (the
“UCITS Regulations”), and the Central bank (Supervision and Enforcement) Act 2013 (Section 48(1)),(Undertakings for
Collective investment in Transferable Securities) Regulations 2019 (the “Central bank UCITS regulations 2019”). These
financial statements have been prepared on a basis other than that of a going concern. As at 5 November 2020, assets are
stated at their realisable values while liabilities are stated at the amount they are expected to be discharged as at the date of
Statement of Financial Position.
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2.

Accounting policies (continued)

2.1 Basis of presentation (continued)
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Although these estimates
are based on management’s best knowledge of current events and actions, actual results may ultimately differ from those
estimates.
(i)

Standards, amendments and interpretations that are effective from 1 January 2020

IAS 1 – Presentation of Financial Statements, IAS 8 – Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Policies
The International Accounting Standards Board has issued 'Definition of Material (Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8)'
to clarify the definition of ‘material’ and to align the definition used in the Conceptual Framework and the standards
themselves. The amended definition is;
Information is material if omitting, misstating or obscuring it could reasonably be expected to influence decisions that
the primary users of general purpose financial statements make on the basis of those financial statements, which
provide financial information about a specific reporting entity.
The amendment is effective from 1 January 2020 and the Company has adopted the amendment and it has not resulted
in any change to the presentation of these financial statements.
(ii)

Standards, amendments and interpretations that are effective after 1 January 2020 and have not been early adopted

A number of new standards, interpretations and amendments to existing standards are effective for financial periods
beginning after 1 January 2020, and have not been early adopted in preparing these financial statements. None of
these are expected to have a material impact on the Company.
Basis of measurement
As described in note 1 to the financial statements the Board of Directors of the Company have decided to terminate
the Sub Funds, proceed to liquidation of the Company and seek revocation of authorisation from the Central Bank.
As a result, the going concern basis assumption is no longer appropriate for the preparation of the financial statements.
As at 5 November 2020 assets are stated at their realisable values while liabilities are stated at the amount they are
expected to be discharged as at the date of the statement of financial position. Fair value as described in note 8 is
considered to represent the net recoverable amount of the respective financial instruments as at 5 November 2020.
Under the plan of liquidation, the Company plans to:
1) use available cash to settle the Company’s obligations and
2) pay out distributions/net proceeds to the shareholders of the Sub Funds.
Due to change in the accounting period, the amounts presented in these financial statements and the related
explanatory notes for the period ended 5 November 2020 are not entirely comparable with the amounts presented for
the year ended 31 December 2019 which were prepared on a going concern basis.
2.2 Critical accounting estimates and judgements
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It
also requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
financial statements are as disclosed in the accounting policies below.
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2.

Accounting policies (continued)

2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies
a.

Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

(i) Classification
Under IFRS 9, a financial asset is classified as measured at: amortised cost; Fair value through other comprehensive income
(“FVOCI”) or fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”).
The classification of financial assets under IFRS 9 is based on the business model in which a financial asset is managed and
on its contractual cash flow characteristics.
In evaluating the classification of financial assets the Fund has determined the following:
• Based on how performance is evaluated, how risks are managed and how compensation is paid, the business model for
financial assets is to manage on a fair value basis.
• The contractual cash flows of the financial assets are not solely payments of principal and interest.
Based on the above evaluation, the Sub Fund’s financial assets are classified at FVTPL.
The Sub Fund’s financial liabilities are classified at FVTPL.
(ii) Recognition/derecognition
All purchases and sales of investments and trading securities that require delivery within the time frame established by
regulation or market convention ("regular way" purchases and sales) are recognised at trade date, which is the date on which
the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset. Any change in fair value of the asset to be received is recognised between
the trade date and settlement date. Securities are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the securities have
expired or the Sub Fund has substantially transferred all risks and rewards of ownership.
(iii) Fair value estimation
The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is based on listed market prices at the Statement of Financial
Position date. The listed market price used for financial assets and the appropriate market price for financial liabilities held
by the Sub Fund is the current last traded price. If a quoted market price is not available on a recognised stock exchange or
from a broker/dealer for non-exchange-traded financial instruments, the fair value of the instrument is estimated using
valuation techniques, including use of recent arm’s length market transactions, reference to the current fair value of another
instrument that is substantially the same, discounted cash flow techniques, option pricing models or any other valuation
technique that provides a reliable estimate of prices obtained in actual market transactions. These techniques incorporate
inputs based on unobservable market data. Transaction costs on financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss are expensed immediately. Transaction costs are defined in the UCITS Regulations as costs incurred by a Sub
fund in connection with the transactions on its portfolio. Transaction costs are incremental costs, which are separately
identifiable and directly attributable to the acquisition, issue or disposal of a financial asset or financial liability. Details of
valuation of illiquid assets are shown in note 8 (c) of these financials statements.
(iv) Specific Instruments
Options
Options are contractual agreements that convey the right, but not the obligation, for the purchaser either to buy or sell a
specific amount of a financial instrument at a fixed price, either at a fixed future date or at any time within a specified period.
The Company purchases and sells put and call options through regulated exchanges. Options purchased by the Company
provide the Company with the opportunity to purchase (call options) or sell (put options) the underlying asset at an agreedupon value either on or before the expiration of the option.
Futures Contracts
A futures contract is a legal agreement, generally made on the trading floor of a futures exchange, to buy or sell a particular
commodity or financial instrument at a predetermined price at a specific time in the future. Futures contracts are standardised
to facilitate trading on a futures exchange and depending on the underlying asset being traded, detail the quality and quantity
of the commodity. Some futures contracts may call for physical delivery of the asset, while others are settled in cash.
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Accounting policies (continued)

2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
b.

Offsetting of financial instruments
IFRS 7, “Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities’’- Amendments to IFRS 7: These amendments require an entity
to disclose information about rights to set-off and related arrangements (e.g., collateral agreements). The disclosures provide
users with information that is useful in evaluating the effect of netting arrangements on an entity’s financial position. The
disclosures are required for all recognised financial instruments that are set off in accordance with IAS 32 Financial
Instruments: Presentation.
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the Statement of Financial Position if, and only if,
there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The Sub Funds does not have any master netting agreements in place.

c.

Foreign currency translations
The presentation and functional currency of both the Company and for the Organic Long/Short Alpha Fund is US Dollar
(“US$”) while the Organic Bond Fund, the Mercantile Diversified Fund, the Mercantile Opportunities Fund, the Long/Short
Alpha Fund and the Global Bond Fund have their presentation and functional currency to be GBP. The directors have
determined that this reflects the Company’s primary economic environment. Transactions in foreign currencies are translated
at the foreign currency exchange rate ruling at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are translated to US$ for the Company, and the Organic Long/Short Alpha Fund, and GBP for the Organic
Bond Fund, the Mercantile Diversified Fund, the Mercantile Opportunities Fund, the Long/Short Alpha Fund and the Global
Bond Fund at the foreign currency closing exchange rate ruling at the Statement of Financial Position date.
Foreign currency exchange differences arising on translation and realised gains and losses on disposals or settlements of
monetary assets and liabilities are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. Non-monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies that are measured at fair value are translated to US$ for the Company, the Organic Bond
Fund, the Mercantile Diversified Fund, the Mercantile Opportunities Fund, the Long/Short Alpha Fund and the Global Bond
Fund and GBP for the Organic Long/Short Alpha Fund at the foreign currency exchange rates ruling at the dates that the
values were determined. Foreign currency exchange differences relating to investments at fair value through profit or loss
and derivative financial instruments are included in gains and losses on investments. All other foreign currency exchange
differences relating to monetary items, including cash, are presented in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

d.

Net loss on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
This item includes changes in the fair value of financial assets and liabilities and excludes interest and dividend income and
expenses.
Realised gains and losses on disposals of financial instruments classified as at fair value through profit or loss are calculated
on a first in first out basis. Unrealised gains and losses comprise changes in the fair value of financial instruments for the
period.

e.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash comprises cash at bank. Cash equivalents are short term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known
amounts of cash and which are subject to insignificant changes in value. The Company’s cash is held with Northern Trust
Bank, Societe Generale Securities Services and Citibank NA London as a sub-custodian of the Depositary.

f.

Income and expenses
All income and expenses are accounted for on an accrual basis and recognised in the Statement Comprehensive Income.
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Accounting policies (continued)

2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
g.

Interest income
Interest income is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income as it accrues, using the original effective interest
rate of the instrument calculated at the acquisition or origination date. Interest income includes the amortisation of any
discount or premium, transaction costs or other differences between the initial carrying amount or any interest-bearing
instrument and its amount at maturity calculated on an effective interest rate basis. Interest income includes interest on bank
and broker balances.

h.

Dividend income
Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive the dividend is established.

i.

Other receivables and other payables
These amounts are measured at amortised cost.
The Directors consider the probability of default to be close to zero as these instruments are short-term and their counterparties
have a strong capacity to meet their contractual obligations in the near term. As a result, no loss allowance has been recognised
based on 12-month expected credit losses as any such impairment would be wholly insignificant to the Company.

j.

Taxation
As the Company qualifies under Section 739B of the Taxes Consolidation Act, 1997 as an investment undertaking, the
Company is not liable for income tax, capital gains tax or corporation tax on its income or gains, other than on the occurrence
of a chargeable event.
A chargeable event includes any distribution to shareholders or any redemption or transfer of shares, or the ending of a
Relevant Period. A Relevant Period is an eight year period beginning with the acquisition of shares by the shareholder and
each subsequent period of eight years beginning immediately after the preceding Relevant Period.
A chargeable event does not include:
 Any transactions in relation to shares held in a recognised clearing system as designated by order of the Revenue
Commissioners of Ireland; or
 An exchange of shares representing one fund for another fund of the Company; or
 Any exchange of shares arising on a qualifying amalgamation or reconstruction of the Company with another fund
or Company.
A chargeable event will not occur in respect of shareholders who are neither resident nor ordinarily resident in Ireland and
who have provided the Company with a relevant declaration to that effect.
In the absence of an appropriate declaration, the Company will be liable to Irish tax on the occurrence of a chargeable event.
There were no chargeable events during the period under review.
Capital gains, dividends and interest may be subject to withholding taxes imposed by the country of origin and such taxes
may not be recoverable by the Company or its shareholders.

k.

Transaction costs
Transaction costs are costs incurred to acquire financial assets or liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. They include
fees and commissions paid to agents, advisers, brokers and dealers. Transaction costs, when incurred, are immediately
recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income as an expense.
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2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
l.

Organisational cost and deferred sales charge
The organisational cost and deferred sales charge are borne out of the assets of the respective Sub-Fund and amortised over a
five year period commencing from the date of the launch of the Sub-Fund. However, for the purpose of these financial statements
establishment costs have been expensed to the respective Sub-Fund in their entirety in line with International Financial Reporting
Standards. Due to the difference in the treatment of these costs there is a difference in the NAV per the financial statements and
the NAV as calculated in accordance with the Prospectus (dealing NAV) of the respective Sub-Fund. For a reconciliation of
these differences, please see Note 13.

3.

Fees and expenses

a.

Management fees
The Manager will be entitled to the following management fee for the Organic Bond Fund in respect of the management services
that it provides to the Company, payable out of the assets of the Sub Fund. The management fee is calculated by the
Administrator accruing at each Valuation Day and payable monthly in arrears at a rate of (i) up to 1.25% per annum of the Net
Asset Value for the Institutional shares; (ii) up to 2% per annum of the Net Asset Value for the Retail shares, subject to a
minimum annual fee, exclusive of out-of-pocket expenses, of €25,000 which was not applied in the current period.
The Manager will be entitled to the following management fee for the Organic Long/Short Alpha Fund in respect of the
management services that it provides to the Company, payable out of the assets of the Sub Fund in relation to the Shares. The
management fee is calculated by the Administrator accruing at each Valuation Day and payable monthly in arrears at a rate of
up to (i) 1.2% per annum of the Net Asset Value for the Institutional Shares, (ii) 2% per annum of the Net Asset Value for the
Retail Shares.
The Manager will be entitled to the following management fee for the Mercantile Diversified Fund in respect of the management
services that it provides to the Company, payable out of the assets of the Sub Fund. The management fee is calculated by the
Administrator accruing at each Valuation Day and payable monthly in arrears at a rate of up to (i) 0.5% per annum of the Net
Asset Value for the Class B Shares. The Class A Shares will not be charged a management fee. The management fee, or part of
the management fee, may be waived at the discretion of the Manager.
The Manager will be entitled to the following management fee for the Mercantile Opportunities Fund in respect of the
management services that it provides to the Company, payable out of the assets of the Sub Fund. The management fee is
calculated by the Administrator accruing at each Valuation Day and payable monthly in arrears at a rate of up to (i) 0.5% per
annum of the Net Asset Value for the Class B Shares. The Class A Shares will not be charged a management fee. The
management fee, or part of the management fee, may be waived at the discretion of the Manager.
The Manager will be entitled to the following management fee for the Long/Short Alpha Fund in respect of the management
services that it provides to the Company, payable out of the assets of the Sub Fund. The management fee is calculated by the
Administrator accruing at each Valuation Day and payable monthly in arrears at a rate of up to (i) 0.65% per annum of the Net
Asset Value for the Institutional “O” Shares GBP and (ii) 0.50% per annum of the Net Asset Value for the Retail “O” Shares
GBP.

38

THE MULTI-MANAGER UCITS PLATFORM FUND PLC
Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the financial period from 1 January 2020 to 5 November 2020
3.

Fees and expenses (continued)

a.

Management fees (continued)
The Manager will be entitled to the following management fee for the Global Bond Fund in respect of the management services
that it provides to the Company, payable out of the assets of the Sub Fund. The management fee is calculated by the
Administrator accruing at each Valuation Day and payable monthly in arrears at a rate of up to 0.50% per annum of the Net
Asset Value for the Institutional “O” Shares GBP and Retail “O” Shares GBP.

5 November 2020

Management fees incurred
Management fees ending balance payable

ORGANIC
ORGANIC LONG/SHORT
BOND
ALPHA
Fund Total
Fund Total
2020
2020
GBP
US$
-

LONG/SHORT
ALPHA
Fund Total
2020
GBP
-

5 November 2020

Management fees incurred
Management fees ending balance payable

31 December 2019

Management fees incurred
Management fees ending balance payable

ORGANIC
ORGANIC LONG/SHORT
BOND
ALPHA
Fund Total
Fund Total
2019
2019
GBP
US$
166,919
53,157
-

LONG/SHORT
ALPHA
Fund Total
2019
GBP
3,213
-

31 December 2019

Management fees incurred
Management fees ending balance payable
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MERCANTILE
MERCANTILE
DIVERSIFIED OPPORTUNITIES
Fund Total
Fund Total
2020
2020
GBP
GBP
13,317
10,958
-

GLOBAL
BOND
Fund Total
2020
GBP
-

Company Total
2020
US$
31,130
-

MERCANTILE
MERCANTILE
DIVERSIFIED OPPORTUNITIES
Fund Total
Fund Total
2019
2019
GBP
GBP
35,557
30,106
2,805
2,444

GLOBAL
BOND
Fund Total
2019
GBP
8,319
219

Company Total
2019
US$
365,331
7,251
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3.

Fees and expenses (continued)

b.

Performance fees
In addition to the management fee, the Manager is entitled to a performance fee payable out of the relevant Share Classes of the
Organic Long/Short Alpha Fund, the Mercantile Diversified Fund, the Mercantile Opportunities Fund and the Long/Short Alpha
Fund.
In relation to the Organic Long/Short Alpha Fund, no performance fee is accrued or paid until the net asset value per Share
exceeds the previous peak net asset value per Share on which the performance fee was paid or accrued. The current rate of the
performance fee is: (i) 15% in relation to the Institutional shares and (ii) 20% per annum in relation to the Retail shares of the
appreciation of the peak net asset value of each such class during that calculation period.
In relation to the Mercantile Diversified Fund, the Performance Fee is calculated as a percentage of the amount (if any) by which
the Net Asset Value per Share is on the relevant Valuation Day greater than the highest Net Asset Value per Share on any
preceding Valuation Day on which a Performance Fee was paid (or greater than the initial offer price in the case of the first
Valuation Day after the launch of any Class) (the "Peak Net Asset Value"), subject to a 1.25% Hurdle.
No Performance Fee is accrued or paid until the Net Asset Value per Share exceeds the previous Peak Net Asset Value per
Share on which the Performance Fee was paid or accrued plus a 1.25% Hurdle. For the Class B Shares, the current rate of the
Performance Fee is 20% per annum of the appreciation of the Peak Net Asset Value of each relevant Class during that
Calculation Period, subject to the 1.25% Hurdle.
In relation to the Mercantile Opportunities Fund, the Performance Fee is calculated as a percentage of the amount (if any) by
which the Net Asset Value per Share is on the relevant Valuation Day greater than the highest Net Asset Value per Share on
any preceding Valuation Day on which a Performance Fee was paid (or greater than the initial offer price in the case of the first
Valuation Day after the launch of any Class) (the "Peak Net Asset Value"), subject to a 1.25% Hurdle.
No Performance Fee is accrued or paid until the Net Asset Value per Share exceeds the previous Peak Net Asset Value per Share
on which the Performance Fee was paid or accrued plus a 1.25% Hurdle. For the Class B Shares, the current rate of the
Performance Fee is 20% per annum of the appreciation of the Peak Net Asset Value of each relevant Class during that Calculation
Period, subject to the 1.25% Hurdle.
In relation to the Long/short Alpha Fund, the Performance Fee is calculated as a percentage of the amount (if any) by which the
Net Asset Value per Share is on the relevant Valuation Day greater than the highest Net Asset Value per Share on any preceding
Valuation Day on which a Performance Fee was paid (or greater than the initial offer price in the case of the first Valuation Day
after the launch of any Class) (the "Peak Net Asset Value").
No Performance Fee is accrued or paid until the Net Asset Value per Share exceeds the previous Peak Net Asset Value per Share
on which the Performance Fee was paid or accrued. The current rate of the Performance Fee is 15% per annum in relation to the
Institutional Shares GBP of the appreciation of the Peak Net Asset Value of each such Class during that calculation period.
During the period ended 5 November 2020 performance fees of GBP£1,902 and GBP£1,877 were incurred for the Mercantile
Diversified Fund and the Mercantile Opportunities Fund, respectively. No performance fees incurred during the year ended 31
December 2019 and none is outstanding as at 5 November 2020 and 31 December 2019 for all Sub-Funds.

c.

Administrator’s fees
The Administrator will be paid a fee not to exceed 0.10% per annum of the entire Net Asset Value of the Sub Fund subject to a
minimum annual fee, exclusive of out-of-pocket expenses of €48,000 for each Sub Fund which was not applied in the current
period. The Administrator will also be reimbursed out of the assets of the Sub Fund for reasonable out-of-pocket expenses
incurred by the Administrator.
A standard implementation fee of EUR5,000 will be charged by the administrator only once for each of the Sub Fund.
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Fees and expenses (continued)

c.

Administrator’s fees
As of 5 November 2020 and 31 December 2019, administration fees incurred and payable were:
ORGANIC
ORGANIC LONG/SHORT
BOND
ALPHA
5 November 2020
Fund Total
Fund Total
2020
2020
GBP
US$
Administration fees incurred
7,473
9,472
Administration fees ending balance payable
2,228
3,394
LONG/SHORT
ALPHA
Fund Total
2020
GBP
-

5 November 2020

Administration fees incurred
Administration fees ending balance payable

ORGANIC
ORGANIC LONG/SHORT
BOND
ALPHA
31 December 2019
Fund Total
Fund Total
2019
2019
GBP
US$
Administration fees incurred
19,112
33,258
Administration fees ending balance payable
705
936

LONG/SHORT
ALPHA
Fund Total
2019
GBP
11,690
-

31 December 2019

Administration fees incurred
Administration fees ending balance payable
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MERCANTILE
MERCANTILE
DIVERSIFIED OPPORTUNITIES
Fund Total
Fund Total
2020
2020
GBP
GBP
22,299
22,299
GLOBAL
BOND
Fund Total
2020
GBP
-

Company Total
2020
US$
76,247
6,313

MERCANTILE
MERCANTILE
DIVERSIFIED OPPORTUNITIES
Fund Total
Fund Total
2019
2019
GBP
GBP
38,847
38,845
3,596
3,596

GLOBAL
BOND
Fund Total
2019
GBP
11,690
-

Company Total
2019
US$
186,663
11,409
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3.

Fees and expenses (continued)

d.

Depositary fees
The Depositary will be paid for the Organic Bond Fund and the Organic Long/Short Alpha Fund a fee of 2.5 basis points of the
Net Asset Value per fund per annum with value added tax, if any, applicable to such fees, subject to a minimum annual fee,
exclusive of out-of-pocket expenses, of €30,000 which was not applied in the current period. The Depositary shall also be
entitled to securities transaction fees per securities transaction and a cash transaction fee per cash transaction which are charged
at market banking rates. The Depositary will also be paid out of the assets of the Sub Fund for reasonable out-of-pocket expenses
incurred by them and for fees (which will not exceed normal commercial rates) and reasonable out-of-pocket expenses of any
sub-custodian appointed by the Depositary and will be liable for transaction charges, which will be at normal commercial rates.
The Depositary will be paid for the Mercantile Diversified Fund and the Mercantile Opportunities Fund a fee not to exceed 2.5
basis points of the Net Asset Value per fund per annum with value added tax, if any, applicable to such fees, subject to a
minimum annual fee, exclusive of out-of-pocket expenses, of €30,000. The Depositary shall also be entitled to securities
transaction fees per securities transaction and a cash transaction fee per cash transaction which are charged at market banking
rates. The Depositary will also be paid out of the assets of the Sub Fund for reasonable out-of-pocket expenses incurred by them
and for fees (which will not exceed normal commercial rates) and reasonable out-of-pocket expenses of any sub-custodian
appointed by the Depositary and will be liable for transaction charges, which will be at normal commercial rates.
The Depositary will be paid for the Long/Short Alpha Fund and the Global Bond Fund a fee not to exceed 2.5 basis points of
the Net Asset Value per fund per annum with value added tax, if any, applicable to such fees, subject to a minimum annual fee,
exclusive of out-of-pocket expenses, of €30,000. The Depositary shall also be entitled to securities transaction fees per securities
transaction and a cash transaction fee per cash transaction which are charged at market banking rates. The Depositary will also
be paid out of the assets of the Sub Fund for reasonable out-of-pocket expenses incurred by them and for fees (which will not
exceed normal commercial rates) and reasonable out-of-pocket expenses of any sub-custodian appointed by the Depositary and
will be liable for transaction charges, which will be at normal commercial rates.
As of 5 November 2020 and 31 December 2019, Depositary and trustee fees incurred and payable were:

5 November 2020

Depositary fees incurred
Depositary fees payable

ORGANIC
ORGANIC LONG/SHORT
BOND
ALPHA
Fund Total
Fund Total
2020
2020
GBP
US$
8,602
10,155
7,102
9,830
LONG/SHORT
ALPHA
Fund Total
2020
GBP
-

5 November 2020

Depositary fees incurred
Depositary fees payable

31 December 2019

Depositary fees incurred
Depositary fees payable

ORGANIC
ORGANIC LONG/SHORT
BOND
ALPHA
Fund Total
Fund Total
2019
2019
GBP
US$
24,384
19,948
285
81
42

MERCANTILE
MERCANTILE
DIVERSIFIED OPPORTUNITIES
Fund Total
Fund Total
2020
2020
GBP
GBP
19,421
18,978
200
200
GLOBAL
BOND
Fund Total
2020
GBP
-

Company Total
2020
US$
70,428
19,658

MERCANTILE
MERCANTILE
DIVERSIFIED OPPORTUNITIES
Fund Total
Fund Total
2019
2019
GBP
GBP
40,671
37,645
8,168
16,915
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3.

Fees and expenses (continued)

d.

Depositary fees (continued)
LONG/SHORT
ALPHA
Fund Total
2019
GBP
7,014
6,540

31 December 2019

Depositary fees incurred
Depositary fees payable
e.

GLOBAL
BOND
Fund Total
2019
GBP
7,014
6,540

Company Total
2019
US$
169,081
51,074

Directors’ fees
Under the Articles, the Directors are entitled to a fee in remuneration for their services to the Company at a rate to be determined
from time to time by the Directors, but so that the aggregate amount of each Directors’ remuneration in any one year shall not
exceed €25,000 (inclusive of VAT) (or such other higher limit as the Directors may from time to time determine). The Directors
and any alternate Directors may also be paid all travelling, hotel and other expenses properly incurred by them in attending and
returning from meetings of the Directors or any other meetings in connection with the business of the Company.
In the case of the Company, Mr. Julian Alworth has waived the receipt of directors’ fees.
Mr. John Bohan is not an independent director and charges a director’s fee of €5,000 per annum per sub fund.
Mr. Andrew Curtin is an independent director and charges a director’s fee of €20,000 per annum.
As of 5 November 2020 and 31 December 2019 Directors’ fees incurred and payable were:

5 November 2020

Directors’ fees incurred
Directors’ fees payable

ORGANIC
ORGANIC LONG/SHORT
BOND
ALPHA
Fund Total
Fund Total
2020
2020
GBP
US$
3,128
4,503
3,128
4,503

LONG/SHORT
ALPHA
Fund Total
2020
GBP
-

5 November 2020

Directors’ fees incurred
Directors’ fees payable

31 December 2019

Directors’ fees incurred
Directors’ fees payable

ORGANIC
ORGANIC LONG/SHORT
BOND
ALPHA
Fund Total
Fund Total
2019
2019
GBP
US$
5,500
6,254
-
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MERCANTILE
MERCANTILE
DIVERSIFIED OPPORTUNITIES
Fund Total
Fund Total
2020
2020
GBP
GBP
14,684
14,684
3,128
3,128

GLOBAL
BOND
Fund Total
2020
GBP
-

Company Total
2020
US$
46,176
16,797

MERCANTILE
MERCANTILE
DIVERSIFIED OPPORTUNITIES
Fund Total
Fund Total
2019
2019
GBP
GBP
8,790
8,790
3,003
3,003
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Fees and expenses (continued)

e.

Directors’ fees (continued)

LONG/SHORT
ALPHA
Fund Total
2019
GBP
3,101
1,904

31 December 2019

Directors’ fees incurred
Directors’ fees payable

GLOBAL
BOND
Fund Total
2019
GBP
3,194
2,575

Company Total
2019
US$
43,739
13,906

Note: Directors fees are accrued in EUR, the difference between the amount incurred and paid and payable relates to currency
movements in the period.
f.

Auditor’s remuneration

5 November 2020

Audit fees incurred
Audit fees payable

ORGANIC
ORGANIC LONG/SHORT
BOND
ALPHA
Fund Total
Fund Total
2020
2020
GBP
US$
8,354
9,785
6,600
7,945

LONG/SHORT
ALPHA
Fund Total
2020
GBP
-

5 November 2020

Audit fees incurred
Audit fees payable

31 December 2019

Audit fees incurred
Audit fees payable

ORGANIC
ORGANIC LONG/SHORT
BOND
ALPHA
Fund Total
Fund Total
2019
2019
GBP
US$
6,349
8,422
6,349
8,422

LONG/SHORT
ALPHA
Fund Total
2019
GBP
-

31 December 2019

Audit fees incurred
Audit fees payable
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MERCANTILE
MERCANTILE
DIVERSIFIED OPPORTUNITIES
Fund Total
Fund Total
2020
2020
GBP
GBP
6,868
7,125
6,387
6,711

GLOBAL
BOND
Fund Total
2020
GBP
-

Company Total
2020
US$
38,442
33,750

MERCANTILE
MERCANTILE
DIVERSIFIED OPPORTUNITIES
Fund Total
Fund Total
2019
2019
GBP
GBP
6,349
6,349
6,349
6,349

GLOBAL
BOND
Fund Total
2019
GBP
-

Company Total
2019
US$
33,688
33,688
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3.

Fees and expenses (continued)

g.

Other fees and expenses

5 November 2020

Bank charges
Directors insurance expense
Financial statement prep expenses
Legal fee
Organisation expense
Other professional services expense
Corporate secretarial fees
Tax preparation fee expense
FATCA services fee expense
VAT expenses
Financial regulator levy expense
Regulatory fee expense
Tax reporting services expense
Taxation expense
Consultant fee expense
General expenses
KiiD fees
Accounting fee
Miscellaneous expense
Other Investment expenses
Other expenses

ORGANIC
ORGANIC LONG/SHORT
BOND
ALPHA
Fund Total
Fund Total
2020
2020
GBP
US$
13
756
18
1,205
1,531
1,928
2,453
3,581
4,637
28,378
1,717
35,110
11,107
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MERCANTILE
MERCANTILE
DIVERSIFIED OPPORTUNITIES
Fund Total
Fund Total
2020
2020
GBP
GBP
3,079
1,890
2,941
2,941
2,300
2,295
15,327
15,743
5
837
1,043
1,043
1,300
1,300
1,807
1,809
2,771
2,771
3,211
3,211
17,214
17,214
2,492
2,098
26,096
25,834
339
339
146
210
683
683
2,560
18,438
78,262
103,708
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3.

Fees and expenses (continued)

g.

Other fees and expenses (continued)

LONG/SHORT
ALPHA
Fund Total
2020
GBP
-

5 November 2020

Bank charges
Directors insurance expense
Financial statement prep expenses
Legal fee
Organisation expense
Other professional services expense
Corporate secretarial fees
Tax preparation fee expense
FATCA services fee expense
VAT expenses
Financial regulator levy expense
Regulatory fee expense
Tax reporting services expense
Taxation expense
Consultant fee expense
General expenses
KiiD fees
Accounting fee
Miscellaneous expense
Other Investment expenses
Other expenses
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GLOBAL
BOND
Fund Total
2020
GBP
-

Company Total
2020
US$
6,385
7,544
5,892
39,844
1,079
3,432
3,334
4,660
7,108
11,312
44,150
4,925
9,229
3,196
2,690
66,594
870
456
1,752
3,283
61,756
289,491
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3.

Fees and expenses (continued)

g.

Other fees and expenses (continued)

31 December 2019

Bank charges
Directors insurance expense
Financial statement prep expenses
Legal fee
License fee
Other professional services expense
Corporate secretarial fees
Tax preparation fee expense
Transfer agent fee expense
VAT expenses
FATCA services fee expense
Financial regulator levy expense
VAT registration & management expense
Accounting Fee
Other Expenses

ORGANIC
ORGANIC LONG/SHORT
BOND
ALPHA
Fund Total
Fund Total
2019
2019
GBP
US$
464
1,482
625
2,120
2,691
1,423
563
792
3,377
1,287
1,673
3,500
4,420
2,141
12,491
915
2,151
1,285
1,662
880
1,115
8,565
4,580
21,949
38,253
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MERCANTILE
MERCANTILE
DIVERSIFIED OPPORTUNITIES
Fund Total
Fund Total
2019
2019
GBP
GBP
277
227
913
913
2,023
1,922
6,791
6,791
1,728
1,831
2,632
2,632
5,712
6,059
2,018
2,018
983
939
2,104
1,980
973
974
113
29
30,854
29,477
57,121
55,792
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3.

Fees and expenses (continued)

g.

Other fees and expenses (continued)

31 December 2019

Bank charges
Directors insurance expense
Financial statement prep expenses
Legal fee
License fee
Other professional services expense
Registered office fees
Corporate secretarial fees
Tax preparation fee expense
Transfer agent fee expense
FATCA services fee expense
VAT expenses
Financial regulator levy expense
VAT Registration & Management
Expense
Accounting fee
Insurance expense
Transaction charges
Operating fee
Other expenses

h.

LONG/SHORT
ALPHA
Fund Total
2019
GBP
123
1,147
1,543
703
1,171
153
701
1,820
701
-

GLOBAL
BOND
Fund Total
2019
GBP
1,147
407
1,629
77
702
2,273
701
-

Company Total
2019
US$
2,875
2,961
13,350
20,752
1,965
12,481
290
11,828
29,131
20,395
10,304
5,782
2,491

328
883
1,169
82
9,556
20,080

827
316
1,169
8,235
17,483

3,700
182
1,515
2,954
104
114,319
257,379

Distribution expenses
In line with the prospectus the Distribution Expense of 5% of subscriptions into the institutional class of shares of £0 (31
December 2019: £0) on Organic Bond Fund and $0 (31 December 2019: $0) on Organic Long Short Alpha Fund is paid to the
Manager European and Global Investments Limited. They also received an initial sales charge fee of 2% of subscriptions into
the retail class of shares for £0 (31 December 2019: £0) on Organic Bond Fund and $0 (31 December 2019: $0) on the Organic
Long Short Alpha Fund. These amounts, charged to subscriptions and sales are paid by the manager to underlying distributors.
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Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
As at 5 November 2020, the Organic Bond Fund and the Organic Long/Short Alpha Fund held investments with nil fair value and other Sub-Funds have no investment.

Corporate bonds
Government bonds
Equity
Mutual Fund
Exchange traded fund

ORGANIC BOND
Fund Total
2019
Assets Liabilities
GBP
GBP
734,993
734,993
-

Corporate bonds
Government bonds
Equity
Mutual Fund
Exchange traded fund
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ORGANIC
LONG/SHORT ALPHA
Fund Total
2019
Assets
Liabilities
US$
US$
152,151
152,151
-

MERCANTILE
DIVERSIFIED
Fund Total
2019
Assets
Liabilities
GBP
GBP
191,306
1,368,763
3,203,214
1,339,023
6,102,306
-

MERCANTILE
OPPORTUNITIES
Fund Total
2019
Assets
Liabilities
GBP
GBP
169,656
2,996,333
508,022
1,447,475
5,121,486
-

LONG/SHORT
ALPHA
Fund Total
2019
Assets
Liabilities
GBP
GBP
-

GLOBAL
BOND
Fund Total
2019
Assets
Liabilities
GBP
GBP
-

Company Total
2019
Assets
Liabilities
US$
US$
478,745
1,815,390
8,222,459
1,800,762
3,695,731
16,013,087
-
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4.

Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (continued)
ORGANIC
ORGANIC LONG/SHORT
BOND
ALPHA
Fund Total
Fund Total
Net loss on financial assets and liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss

2020
GBP
-

2020
US$
-

MERCANTILE
DIVERSIFIED
Fund Total
2020
GBP
(673,682)

Realised losses on investments
Unrealised losses on investments –
movement in period

(916,115)

(142,648)

(115,007)

Net loss on financial assets and liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss

(916,115)

(142,648)

(788,689)

10,022
(1,023,196)

GLOBAL
BOND
Fund Total

2020
GBP
-

2020
GBP
-

2020
US$
(2,188,913)

-

-

(1,452,098)

-

-

(3,641,011)

ORGANIC
ORGANIC LONG/SHORT
BOND
ALPHA
Fund Total
Fund Total

MERCANTILE
DIVERSIFIED
Fund Total

Realised losses on investments
Unrealised losses on investments – movement
in period
Net loss on financial assets and liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss

Realised (losses)/gains on investments
Unrealised gains on investments –
movement in period
Net (loss)/gain on financial assets and
liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss

2020
GBP
(1,033,218)

LONG/SHORT
ALPHA
Fund Total
Net loss on financial assets and liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss

Net (loss)/gain on financial assets and
liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss

MERCANTILE
OPPORTUNITIES
Fund Total

2019
GBP
(17,839,997)

2019
US$
(1,124,275)

2019
GBP
(1,156,165)

Company Total

MERCANTILE
OPPORTUNITIES
Fund Total
2019
GBP
93,305

7,006,173

226,790

350,379

405,567

(10,833,824)

(897,485)

(805,786)

498,872

GLOBAL
BOND
Fund Total

Company Total

LONG/SHORT
ALPHA
Fund Total
Net (loss)/gain on financial assets and
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

2019
GBP
(14,601)

Realised (losses)/gains on investments
Unrealised gains on investments – movement
in period
Net (loss)/gain on financial assets and
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

(14,601)
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2019
GBP
1,122
1,122

2019
US$
(25,328,769)
10,158,938
(15,169,831)
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Cash and cash equivalents

Societe Generale
Citibank NA London
Northern Trust Bank

ORGANIC
ORGANIC LONG/SHORT
BOND
ALPHA
Fund Total
Fund Total
2020
2020
GBP
US$
1,480
10
52,816
31,234
54,296
31,244
LONG/SHORT
ALPHA
Fund Total
2020
GBP
-

Societe Generale
Citibank NA London
Northern Trust Bank

Societe Generale
Citibank NA London

ORGANIC
ORGANIC LONG/SHORT
BOND
ALPHA
Fund Total
Fund Total
2019
2019
GBP
US$
41,638
42,130
41,638
42,130
LONG/SHORT
ALPHA
Fund Total
2019
GBP
23,012
23,012

Societe Generale
Citibank NA London
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MERCANTILE
MERCANTILE
DIVERSIFIED OPPORTUNITIES
Fund Total
Fund Total
2020
2020
GBP
GBP
69,408
65,988
1,719
3,333
71,127
69,321
GLOBAL
BOND
Fund Total
2020
GBP
-

Company Total
2020
US$
1,949
277,792
6,618
286,359

MERCANTILE
MERCANTILE
DIVERSIFIED OPPORTUNITIES
Fund Total
Fund Total
2019
2019
GBP
GBP
324,304
533,832
1,604
5,751
325,908
539,583
GLOBAL
BOND
Fund Total
2019
GBP
40,510
40,510

Company Total
2019
US$
1,319,749
9,755
1,329,504
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6.

Share Capital
The minimum authorised share capital of the Company is €2 represented by 2 Subscriber Shares of no par value and the
maximum authorised share capital of the Company is 500,000,000,002 Shares of no par value initially designated as unclassified
Shares. The Directors are empowered to issue up to 500,000,000,002 Shares of no par value designated as Shares of any Class
on such items as they think fit.
The issued capital of the Company as of the date of this Prospectus is €2 represented by 2 Subscriber Shares of no par value
issued for €1 each. The Subscriber Shares entitle the holders to attend and vote at general meetings of the Company but do not
entitle the holders to participate in the profits or assets of the Company except for a return of capital on a winding-up.
Redeemable Non-Participating Shares do not entitle the holder to any dividends or assets attributable to Redeemable
Participating Shares of the Company. On the winding up of the Company, Redeemable Non-Participating Shares entitle the
holders thereof to receive the amount paid up thereon but do not otherwise entitle them to participate in the assets of the
Company. Redeemable Non-Participating Shares may at the request of any of the holders thereof be purchased by the Company
directly or indirectly out of the Company’s assets.
As at 5 November 2020, 2 Redeemable Non-Participating shares were in issue.
As at 5 November 2020 and at all times during the period under review, the proceeds from the issuance of Redeemable NonParticipating Shares were the only assets of the Company which were not part of the assets of the Sub Fund.
The cash proceeds from the issuance of Redeemable Non-Participating Shares is deposited with the Depositary. Interest income
earned on this cash during the period ended 5 November 2020 amounted to US$ nil (31 December 2019: US$ nil).
Organic Bond Fund
Redeemable Participating Shares will be issued to investors as Shares of a Class in the Sub Fund. The Directors may, whether
on the establishment of this Sub Fund or from time to time, with prior notification to, and clearance by the Central Bank, create
more than three Classes of Shares in this Sub Fund. The Directors may in their absolute discretion differentiate between Classes
of Shares, without limitation, as to currency denomination of a particular Class, dividend policy, hedging strategies, if any
applied to the designated currency of a particular Class, Shariah compliance, fees and expenses or the Minimum Subscription
or Minimum Holding applicable. The Directors may in their absolute discretion waive the Minimum Subscription or Minimum
Holding requirement.
The Sub Fund was terminated on 5 November 2020, hence no share was available for subscription into the Sub-Fund from this
date, while the existing outstanding shares were redeemed after the period end.
Organic Long/Short Alpha Fund
Redeemable Participating Shares will be issued to investors as Shares of a Class in the Sub Fund. The Directors may, whether
on the establishment of this Sub Fund or from time to time, with prior notification to, and clearance by the Central Bank, create
more than four Classes of Shares in this Sub Fund. The Directors may in their absolute discretion differentiate between Classes
of Shares, without limitation, as to currency denomination of a particular Class, dividend policy, hedging strategies, if any
applied to the designated currency of a particular Class, Shariah compliance, fees and expenses or the Minimum Subscription
or Minimum Holding applicable. The Directors may in their absolute discretion waive the Minimum Subscription or Minimum
Holding requirement.
The Sub Fund was terminated on 5 November 2020, hence no share was available for subscription into the Sub-Fund from this
date, while the existing outstanding shares were redeemed after the period end.
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Share Capital (continued)
The Mercantile Diversified Fund
The Sub Fund is offering three GBP denominated Classes of Shares – Class A, B and C.
During the period ended 5 November 2020, two Class of Shares in the Sub Fund were available for subscription and details of
which are set out below:
Class of Share

Currency

Minimum Initial
Subscription

Minimum
Holding

Class A

GBP

GBP5,000

GBP5,000

Class B

GBP

GBP5,000

GBP5,000

After the close of the initial offer period (the “IOP”), Shares shall be issued at the Net Asset Value per Share on each Dealing
Day and adding thereto such sum as the Directors in their absolute discretion may from time to time determine as an appropriate
provision for Duties and Charges and such other adjustment as the Directors may from time to time determine.
In order to receive Shares at the Net Asset Value per Share as of any particular Dealing Day, the signed application form must
be received no later than 5pm (Irish time) at least 1 Business Day prior to the relevant Valuation Day or, in exceptional
circumstances, such later time as the Manager may from time to time permit provided that applications will not be accepted after
the Valuation Point. Applications received after such time will be held over until the following Dealing Day. Where the applicant
is an existing Shareholder a repeat application form may be used. The signed repeat application form must be received no later
than 5pm (Irish time) at least 1 Business Day prior to the relevant Valuation Day or, in exceptional circumstances, such late r
time as the Manager may from time to time permit provided that applications will not be accepted after the Valuation Point.
Shareholders may request the Sub Fund to redeem their Shares on and with effect from any Dealing Day at the Net Asset Value
per Share less any applicable Duties and Charges on such Dealing Day (subject to such adjustments, if any, as may be specified
including, without limitation, any adjustment required for redemption charges) in accordance with the redemption procedures
specified below.
A redemption request form should be posted or sent by facsimile or email, so as to arrive at the Administrator’s address no later
than 5pm (Irish time) at least 1 Business Day prior to the relevant Valuation Day or, in exceptional circumstances, such later
time as the Manager may from time to time permit provided that redemption request forms will not be accepted after the
Valuation Point.
Redemption requests should be made on the redemption request form (available from the Administrator) which should be posted
or sent by facsimile or email to the Administrator. The address for the Administrator is set out in the Prospectus. Subject to the
foregoing, and to the receipt of the application form and all anti-money laundering documentation and completion of all antimoney laundering checks, redemption proceeds will be paid by telegraphic transfer to the Shareholder’s account specified in the
application form within 3 Business Days from the deadline for receipt of redemption requests. Redemptions will not be processed
on non-verified accounts.
The Sub Fund was terminated on 5 November 2020, hence no share for subscription from this date.
The Mercantile Opportunities Fund
The Sub Fund is offering three GBP denominated Classes of Shares – Class A, B and C.
During the period ended 5 November 2020, one Classes of Shares in the Sub Fund were available for subscription and details
of which are set out below:
Class of Share

Currency

Minimum Initial
Subscription

Minimum
Holding

Class B

GBP

GBP5,000

GBP5,000
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Share Capital (continued)
The Mercantile Opportunities Fund (continued)
After the close of the initial offer period (the “IOP”), Shares shall be issued at the Net Asset Value per Share on each Dealing
Day and adding thereto such sum as the Directors in their absolute discretion may from time to time determine as an appropriate
provision for Duties and Charges and such other adjustment as the Directors may from time to time determine.
In order to receive Shares at the Net Asset Value per Share as of any particular Dealing Day, the signed application form must
be received no later than 5pm (Irish time) at least 1 Business Day prior to the relevant Valuation Day or, in exceptional
circumstances, such later time as the Manager may from time to time permit provided that applications will not be accepted after
the Valuation Point. Applications received after such time will be held over until the following Dealing Day. Where the applicant
is an existing Shareholder a repeat application form may be used. The signed repeat application form must be received no later
than 5pm (Irish time) at least 1 Business Day prior to the relevant Valuation Day or, in exceptional circumstances, such later
time as the Manager may from time to time permit provided that applications will not be accepted after the Valuation Point.
Shareholders may request the Sub Fund to redeem their Shares on and with effect from any Dealing Day at the Net Asset Value
per Share less any applicable Duties and Charges on such Dealing Day (subject to such adjustments, if any, as may be specified
including, without limitation, any adjustment required for redemption charges) in accordance with the redemption procedures
specified below.
A redemption request form should be posted or sent by facsimile or email, so as to arrive at the Administrator’s address no later
than 5pm (Irish time) at least 1 Business Day prior to the relevant Valuation Day or, in exceptional circumstances, such late r
time as the Manager may from time to time permit provided that redemption request forms will not be accepted after the
Valuation Point.
Redemption requests should be made on the redemption request form (available from the Administrator) which should be posted
or sent by facsimile or email to the Administrator. The address for the Administrator is set out in the Prospectus. Subject to the
foregoing, and to the receipt of the application form and all anti-money laundering documentation and completion of all
antimony laundering checks, redemption proceeds will be paid by telegraphic transfer to the Shareholder’s account specified in
the application form within 3 Business Days from the deadline for receipt of redemption requests. Redemptions will not be
processed on non-verified accounts.
The Sub Fund was terminated on 5 November 2020, hence no share for subscription from this date.
The Long/Short Alpha Fund
The Sub Fund is offering four GBP denominated Classes of Shares – Institutional Shares, Institutional “O” Shares, Retail Shares
and Retail “O” Shares.
The Sub Fund was terminated during the prior year, hence all the remaining Classes of Redeemable Participating Shares were
fully redeemed as at 31 December 2019.
Subscriptions to the Institutional “O” Shares GBP Share Class and Retail “O” Shares GBP Share Class will be restricted to
shareholders switching from The Organic Long/ Short Alpha Fund. The initial offer price of such Shares will be GBP100.
After the close of the initial offer period (the “IOP”), Shares shall be issued at the Net Asset Value per Share on each Dealing
Day and adding thereto such sum as the Directors in their absolute discretion may from time to time determine as an appropriate
provision for Duties and Charges and such other adjustment as the Directors may from time to time determine.
In order to receive Shares at the Net Asset Value per Share as of any particular Dealing Day, the signed application form must
be received no later than 5pm (Irish time) at least 1 Business Day prior to the relevant Valuation Day or, in exceptional
circumstances, such later time as the Manager may from time to time permit provided that applications will not be accepted after
the Valuation Point. Applications received after such time will be held over until the following Dealing Day. Where the applicant
is an existing Shareholder a repeat application form may be used. The signed repeat application form must be received no later
than 5pm (Irish time) at least 1 Business Day prior to the relevant Valuation Day or, in exceptional circumstances, such later
time as the Manager may from time to time permit provided that applications will not be accepted after the Valuation Point.
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Share Capital (continued)
The Long/Short Alpha Fund (continued)
Shareholders may request the Fund to redeem their Shares on and with effect from any Dealing Day at the Net Asset Value per
Share less any applicable Duties and Charges on such Dealing Day (subject to such adjustments, if any, as may be specified
including, without limitation, any adjustment required for redemption charges as described under the section of the Prospectus
entitled “Fees and Expenses”) in accordance with the redemption procedures specified below.
A redemption request form should be posted or sent by facsimile or email, so as to arrive at the Administrator’s address no later
than 5pm (Irish time) at least 1 Business Day prior to the relevant Valuation Day or, in exceptional circumstances, such later
time as the Manager may from time to time permit provided that redemption request forms will not be accepted after the
Valuation Point.
Redemption requests should be made on the redemption request form (available from the Administrator) which should be posted
or sent by facsimile or email to the Administrator. The address for the Administrator is set out in the Prospectus. Subject to the
foregoing, and to the receipt of the application form and all anti-money laundering documentation and completion of all antimoney laundering checks, redemption proceeds will be paid by telegraphic transfer to the Shareholder’s account specified in the
application form within 5 Business Days from the deadline for receipt of redemption requests. Redemptions will not be processed
on non-verified accounts.
The Global Bond Fund
The Sub Fund is offering four GBP denominated Classes and one EUR Class of Shares – Institutional Shares, Retail Shares,
Institutional “O” Shares, Retail “O” Shares and Retail Shares EUR respectively.
The Sub Fund was terminated during the prior year, hence all the remaining Classes of Redeemable Participating Shares were
fully redeemed as at 31 December 2019.
Subscriptions to the Institutional “O” Shares GBP and Retail “O” Shares GBP will be restricted to shareholders switching from
The Organic Bond fund, a sub-fund of the Company and will be offered at a price of GBP100 per Share.
After the close of the initial offer period (the “IOP”), Shares shall be issued at the Net Asset Value per Share on each Dealing
Day and adding thereto such sum as the Directors in their absolute discretion may from time to time determine as an appropriate
provision for Duties and Charges as the Directors may from time to time determine.
In order to receive Shares at the Net Asset Value per Share as of any particular Dealing Day, the signed application form must
be received no later than 5pm (Irish time) at least 1 Business Day prior to the relevant Valuation Day or, in exceptional
circumstances, such later time as the Manager may from time to time permit provided that applications will not be accepted after
the Valuation Point. Applications received after such time will be held over until the following Dealing Day. Where the applicant
is an existing Shareholder a repeat application form may be used. The signed repeat application form must be received no later
than 5pm (Irish time) at least 1 Business Day prior to the relevant Valuation Day or, in exceptional circumstances, such later
time as the Manager may from time to time permit provided that applications will not be accepted after the Valuation Point.
Shareholders may request the Fund to redeem their Shares on and with effect from any Dealing Day at the Net Asset Value per
Share less any applicable Duties and Charges on such Dealing Day (subject to such adjustments, if any, as may be specified
including, without limitation, any adjustment required for redemption charges as described under the section of the Prospectus
entitled “Fees and Expenses”) in accordance with the redemption procedures specified below.
A redemption request form should be posted or sent by facsimile or email, so as to arrive at the Administrator’s address no later
than 5pm (Irish time) at least 1 Business Day prior to the relevant Valuation Day or, in exceptional circumstances, such later
time as the Manager may from time to time permit provided that redemption request forms will not be accepted after the
Valuation Point.
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Share Capital (continued)
The Global Bond Fund (continued)
Redemption requests should be made on the redemption request form (available from the Administrator) which should be posted
or sent by facsimile or email to the Administrator. The address for the Administrator is set out in the Prospectus. Subject to the
foregoing, and to the receipt of the application form and all anti-money laundering documentation and completion of all antimoney laundering checks, redemption proceeds will be paid by telegraphic transfer to the Shareholder’s account specified in the
application form within 5 Business Days from the deadline for receipt of redemption requests. Redemptions will not be processed
on non-verified accounts.
Organic Bond Fund
The following table details the subscription and redemption activity during the period ending 5 November 2020:
2020
Class A
Institutional
Shares GBP

2020
Class A
Retail Shares
GBP

Redeemable Participating Shares in issue at start of
period
Issuance of Redeemable Participating Shares
Redemption of Redeemable Participating Shares

127,919
-

33,245
-

Redeemable Participating Shares in issue at end of period

127,919

33,245

The Sub Fund was terminated on 5 November 2020, hence no share was available for subscription into the Sub-Fund from this
date, while the existing outstanding shares were redeemed after the period end.
The following table details the subscription and redemption activity during the year ending 31 December 2019:
2019
Class A
Institutional
Shares GBP

2019
Class A
Retail Shares
GBP

Redeemable Participating Shares in issue at start of year
Issuance of Redeemable Participating Shares
Redemption of Redeemable Participating Shares

336,546
(208,627)

87,465
(54,220)

Redeemable Participating Shares in issue at end of year

127,919

33,245

Organic Long/Short Alpha Fund
The following table details the subscription and redemption activity during the period ending 5 November 2020:

Redeemable Participating Shares in issue at start of
period
Issuance of Redeemable Participating Shares
Redemption of Redeemable Participating Shares
Redeemable Participating Shares in issue at end of
period

2020
Institutional
Shares GBP

2020
Retail
Shares GBP

115,378
-

2,863
-

115,378

2,863

The Sub Fund was terminated on 5 November 2020, hence no share was available for subscription into the Sub-Fund from this
date, while the existing outstanding shares were redeemed after the period end.
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The following table details the subscription and redemption activity during the year ending 31 December 2019:
2019
Institutional
Shares GBP

2019
Retail
Shares GBP

Redeemable Participating Shares in issue at start of year
Issuance of Redeemable Participating Shares
Redemption of Redeemable Participating Shares

885,331
(769,953)

21,968
(19,105)

Redeemable Participating Shares in issue at end of year

115,378

2,863

The Mercantile Diversified Fund
The following table details the subscription and redemption activity during the period ending 5 November 2020:
2020
Class B
Redeemable Participating Shares in issue at start of period
Issuance of Redeemable Participating Shares
Redemption of Redeemable Participating Shares
Redeemable Participating Shares in issue at end of period

6,870,033
10,607
(6,880,640)
-

The following table details the subscription and redemption activity during the year ending 31 December 2019:
2019
Class B
Redeemable Participating Shares in issue at start of year
Issuance of Redeemable Participating Shares
Redemption of Redeemable Participating Shares

7,478,754
882,382
(1,491,103)

Redeemable Participating Shares in issue at end of year

6,870,033

The Mercantile Opportunities Fund
The following table details the subscription and redemption activity during the period ending 5 November 2020:
2020
Class B
Redeemable Participating Shares in issue at start of period
Issuance of Redeemable Participating Shares
Redemption of Redeemable Participating Shares
Redeemable Participating Shares in issue at end of period
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Share Capital (continued)
The following table details the subscription and redemption activity during the year ending 31 December 2019:
2019
Class B
Redeemable Participating Shares in issue at start of year
Issuance of Redeemable Participating Shares
Redemption of Redeemable Participating Shares

6,958,419
800,137
(1,425,508)

Redeemable Participating Shares in issue at end of year

6,333,048

The Long/Short Alpha Fund
The following table details the subscription and redemption activity during the period ending 31 December 2019:
2019
Retail “O”
Shares
Redeemable Participating Shares in issue at start of period
Issuance of Redeemable Participating Shares
Redemption of Redeemable Participating Shares
Redeemable Participating Shares in issue at end of period

1,421
(1,421)
-

2019
Institutional
“O” Shares
51,866
(51,866)
-

The Global Bond Fund
The following table details the subscription and redemption activity during the period ending 31 December 2019:
2019
Retail “O”
Shares
Redeemable Participating Shares in issue at start of period
Issuance of Redeemable Participating Shares
Redemption of Redeemable Participating Shares
Redeemable Participating Shares in issue at end of period
7.

4,250
(4,250)
-

2019
Institutional
“O” Shares
156,899
(156,899)
-

Related party transactions
Details of potential conflicts of interest are set out in the Prospectus.
Mr. John Bohan a director of the Company is also a director of the Administrator. Fees paid to directors are outlined in note
3(e).
Mr. Julian Alworth is a director of the Manager and European Investment Consulting (EIC). Mr Alworth is a Partner in European
& Global Advisors LLP (EGA).
During the period £0 (year 2019: £19,983) was paid in risk fees to EIC.
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Related party transactions (continued)
During the financial period ended 5 November 2020, the Management fees of US$31,130 (31 December 2019: US$365,331)
were incurred by the Company, out of which US$ Nil (31 December 2019: US$7,251) were outstanding at 5 November 2020.
During the financial period ended 5 November 2020, the Administrator fees of US$76,247 (31 December 2019: US$186,663)
were incurred by the Company, out of which US$6,313 (31 December 2019: US$11,409) were outstanding at 5 November 2020.
During the financial period ended 5 November 2020, the Depositary fees of US$70,428 (31 December 2019: US$169,081) were
incurred by the Company, out of which US$19,658 (31 December 2019: US$51,074) were outstanding at 5 November 2020.
Details of fees paid to related parties and certain connected parties are also set out in Note 3.

8.

Risk Management
As a sub-fund of an open ended investment company each of the Sub Fund holds a portfolio of financial assets in pursuit of its
investment objective. Each of the Sub Fund’s financial instruments comprise listed equities, listed bond investments, exchange
traded fund and fund investment which are held to achieve its investment objective as well as debtors and creditors that arise
from its operations, for example sales and purchases of securities awaiting settlement with brokers, fee’s payable to the
Investment Manager and Depositary and debtors for dividends accrued.
The primary responsibility of reviewing and monitoring of risk in the Sub Fund rests with the Directors; however as part of its
strategy the Directors have contractually delegated powers and responsibility for the day to day management and administration
of the Sub Fund to the Investment Manager.
(a) Credit Risk
Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the each
of the Fund. In accordance with the prospectus and the UCITS regulations, each of the Fund minimises concentrations of credit
risk by undertaking transactions with a number of creditworthy counterparties. As a result, they are not subject to significant
amounts of credit risk. Further, the Fund obtains sufficient collateral, where appropriate, as a means of mitigating the risk of
financial loss from defaults.
Credit risk arising on transactions with brokers relates to transactions awaiting settlement. Risk relating to unsettled transactions
is considered to be small due to the short settlement period involved and the high credit quality of the brokers used.
The Investment Manager monitors the Company’s risk by establishing relationships with high quality financial institutions and
initially reviewing the bank’s risk management strategy and thereafter monitoring the credit worthiness of the counterparty. The
Investment Manager would take appropriate action should the credit quality of the financial institution deteriorate significantly.
The Company’s and each of the Sub Fund’s Depositary is European Depositary Bank S.A. Substantially, investments are held
by sub-custody at period end. Investments are held distinct and separately, segregated from the proprietary assets of the
Depositary’s, with ownership rights remaining with the Company. It is expected that all securities and other assets deposited
with the Depositary will be clearly identified as being assets of the Company; the Company should not therefore be exposed to
a credit risk with respect to such parties. However, it may not always be possible to achieve this segregation. The custodial safekeeping of assets, particularly abroad, may be associated with a risk of loss that can result from the Depositary, becoming
insolvent, breaching its duties of care and diligence, or acting in an unlawful manner., The portfolio of the Company may
experience increased exposure to credit risk associated with the Depositary, causing the Company’s rights with respect to its
investments held by the Depositary to be delayed or limited. The maximum exposure to this risk is the amount of long
investments disclosed in the Schedule of Investments.
Substantially most of the cash of the Company is held with the Northern Trust Bank, Societe Generale Securities Services and
Citibank NA London (“Sub-custodians”). In respect of the cash held by the Sub-custodians the Company will be exposed to the
credit risk of the Sub-custodians. In the event of the insolvency or bankruptcy of the Sub-custodians, the Company, will be
treated as a general creditor in relation to the cash held.
The long term credit rating of Citibank NA London, as at 5 November 2020 is Aa3 (31 December 2019: Aa3) and Northern
Trust Bank is A2 (Moody’s rating).
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Risk Management (continued)
(a) Credit Risk (continued)
The global exposure is calculated daily for the Organic Bond Fund and the Organic Long/Short Alpha Fund by the European
and Global Investments Limited and used with the net asset value as calculated independently by the fund administrator, Apex
Funds Services (Ireland) Limited. In the event that the fund is exposed to derivative instruments or netting or hedging activity,
global exposure will be calculated based on the Commitment Approach and uses active monitoring in the current value of the
underlying assets both pre and post trades, as outlined in the Company’s Risk Management Procedure (‘RMP’) document. The
Mercantile Diversified Fund, the Mercantile Opportunities Fund, the Long/Short Alpha Fund and the Global Bond Fund does
not currently use financial derivative instruments. A RMP will be submitted to the Central Bank prior to the Fund engaging in
any financial derivative transactions.
The carrying amounts of financial assets best represent the maximum risk exposure at the end of the reporting period. The
following table lists the Sub Fund’s financial assets exposed to credit risk as at 5 November 2020.
ORGANIC
ORGANIC LONG/SHORT
BOND
ALPHA
Fund Total
Fund Total
2020
2020
GBP
US$
Receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Total

54,296
54,296

Receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Total

MERCANTILE
MERCANTILE
DIVERSIFIED OPPORTUNITIES
Fund Total
Fund Total
2020
2020
GBP
GBP

31,244
31,244

71,127
71,127

69,321
69,321

LONG/SHORT
ALPHA
Fund Total
2020
GBP

GLOBAL
BOND
Fund Total
2020
GBP

Company Total
2020
US$

-

-

286,359
286,359

The carrying amounts of financial assets best represent the maximum risk exposure at the end of the reporting year. The
following table lists the Sub Fund’s financial assets exposed to credit risk as at 31 December 2019.
ORGANIC
ORGANIC LONG/SHORT
BOND
ALPHA
Fund Total
Fund Total
2019
2019
GBP
US$
Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss
Investments in bonds
Investments in equities
Investment in mutual funds
Investment in exchange traded fund
Receivables
Interest receivable
Dividend receivable
Cash and cash equivalents
Prepayments and other receivables
Total

MERCANTILE
MERCANTILE
DIVERSIFIED OPPORTUNITIES
Fund Total
Fund Total
2019
2019
GBP
GBP

734,993
-

152,151
-

1,560,069
3,203,214
1,339,023

169,656
2,996,333
508,022
1,447,475

41,638
776,631

42,130
194,281

8,725
9,611
325,908
36
6,446,586

796
539,583
36
5,661,901
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(a) Credit Risk (continued)
LONG/SHORT
ALPHA
Fund Total
2019
GBP

GLOBAL
BOND
Fund Total
2019
GBP

Company Total
2019
US$

-

-

2,294,135
8,222,459
1,800,762
3,695,731

23,012
509
23,521

40,510
581
41,091

11,572
13,803
1,329,504
1,542
17,369,508

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss
Investments in bonds
Investments in equities
Investment in mutual funds
Investment in exchange traded fund
Receivables
Interest receivable
Dividend receivable
Cash and cash equivalents
Prepayments and other receivables
Total

As described in note 8 (c) (iv) below the Sub-Funds invest in certain markets through equity, mutual fund and bonds. As at 5
November 2020 these equity, mutual fund, bonds, future and exchange traded fund represent 0.00%, 0.00%, 0.00%, 0.00% and
0.00% (31 December 2019: 51.35%, 11.24%, 14.33%, 0.00% and 23.08%) of the total investments. The individual exposures
are held with eligible counterparties in accordance with the UCITS Regulations and are within the limits as set out in the UCITS
Regulations (maximum of 10% where the counterparty is an EU credit institution or equivalent, otherwise 5%).
The credit rating of counterparties to the bonds are shown below. The maximum exposure to each counterparty is the market
value of the Bonds held with each counterparty which is shown in the Portfolio Statements. The below are counterparties related
to the two sub funds (31 December 2019: four sub funds):
Counterparty

Rating Agency

2020

Rating Agency

2019

S&P’s
-

A
-

S&P’s
N/A

A
NR

European Depositary Bank SA
MBH Corporation Plc

The table below shows the credit quality of investment in bonds as of 5 November 2020 as per Standard and Poor’s for the
Organic Bond Fund and the Organic Long Short Alpha Fund:
Rating
Bond Securities
Agency
2020
ADV Holding Ltd. 10.00% 03/12/2019
N/A
NR
All Saints Commercial 8.00% 31/12/2023
N/A
NR
Apollo Commercial Property Plc 5.00% 31/12/2025
N/A
NR
Audley Funding Plc 6.00% 15/11/2036
N/A
NR
Ballarat Property Plc 5.50% 31/12/2025
N/A
NR
Carpe Valorem 7.00% 29/07/2021
N/A
NR
Emplc 2016-4EU A 3.50% 23/06/2031
N/A
NR
Energy Circle 6.50% 01/12/2023
N/A
NR
Ethika Finance Plc 8.50% 13/01/2022
N/A
NR
Ethiqo Green Energy Plc 7.00% 31/12/2026
N/A
NR
IPO Capital Plc 7.25% 31/03/2022
N/A
NR
Konstanz Finance Ltd 5.53% 10/08/2021
N/A
NR
Konstanz Finance Ltd 6.25% 10/08/2023
N/A
NR
Progression Escher Marwick Plc 5.50% 17/10/2036
N/A
NR
The Resort Grp Etp 1 GBP Series 2016-04 Emarwick 0.00% 23/06/2031
N/A
NR
Via Developments 7.00% 19/10/2020
N/A
NR
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(a) Credit Risk (continued)
The table below shows the credit quality of investment in bonds as of 31 December 2019 as per Standard and Poor’s for the
Organic Bond Fund, the Organic Long Short Alpha Fund, the Mercantile Diversified Fund and the Mercantile Opportunities
Fund:
Bond Securities
ADV Holding Ltd. 10.00% 03/12/2019
All Saints Commercial 8.00% 31/12/2023
Apollo Commercial Property Plc 5.00% 31/12/2025
Audley Funding Plc 6.00% 15/11/2036
Ballarat Property Plc 5.50% 31/12/2025
Carpe Valorem 7.00% 29/07/2021
Emplc 2016-4EU A 3.50% 23/06/2031
Energy Circle 6.50% 01/12/2023
Ethika Finance Plc 8.50% 13/01/2022
Ethiqo Green Energy Plc 7.00% 31/12/2026
IPO Capital Plc 7.25% 31/03/2022
Konstanz Finance Ltd 5.53% 10/08/2021
Konstanz Finance Ltd 6.25% 10/08/2023
MBH Corporation Plc 19/10/2020
Progression Escher Marwick Plc 5.50% 19/09/2036
Progression Escher Marwick Plc 5.50% 17/10/2036
The Resort Grp Etp 1 GBP Series 2016-04 Emarwick 0.00% 23/06/2031
TSY 2 1/2% 2020I/L STOCK 2.5% 16/04/2020
UK TSY 2% 2020 22/07/2020
UK TSY 4 1/4% 4.25% 07/06/2032
UK TSY 4 1/4% 4.25% 12/07/2027
US TREASURY N/B 2.75% 15/02/2028
US TREASURY N/B 4.5% 15/02/2036
Via Developments 7.00% 19/10/2020

Rating
Agency
N/A
N/A
N/A
S&P
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
S&P
S&P
S&P
S&P
S&P
S&P
S&P

2019
NR
NR
NR
BBB+
NR
NR
NR
NR
NR
NR
NR
NR
NR
NR
NR
NR
NR
AAu
AA
AAu
AAu
AAA
AAA
NR

(b) Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial liabilities.
From time to time, the counterparties with which the Company carries out trades might cease making markets or quoting prices
for investments held in the Company. In such instances, the Company might be unable to enter into a desired transaction in other
financial instruments, or to enter into any offsetting transaction with respect to an open position, which might adversely affect
its performance. Similarly, it may not always be possible for the Company to execute a buy or sell order at the desired price or
to liquidate an open position either due to market conditions or due to the operation of daily price fluctuation limits. If trading
on an exchange is suspended or restricted, the Company may not be able to execute trades or close out positions on terms which
the Investment Manager believes are desirable.
The Investment Manager reviews liquidity on an ongoing basis.
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(b) Liquidity Risk (continued)
Redemptions
The Company is also exposed to daily redemptions of Redeemable Participating Shares. Non-Participating Shares are
redeemable at any stage at the option of the holder.
The maturity analysis below shows each of the Sub Fund’s and Company contractual financial assets and liabilities at the end
of the reporting period.
2020
ORGANIC BOND Fund

Less than
1 Month
GBP

1–3
Months
GBP

3 Months
To 1 Year
GBP

Over
1 Year
GBP

Cash and cash equivalents
Total Financial Assets

54,296
54,296

-

-

-

Depositary fees payable
Directors fees payable
Audit fees payable
Administration fees payable
Liquidation fee payable
Other accounts payable and accrued expenses
Net assets attributable to Holders of
Redeemable Participating Shares
Total Financial Liabilities

7,102
3,128
6,600
2,228
1,399
33,839

-

-

-

54,296

-

-

-

Less than
1 Month
US$

1–3
Months
US$

3 Months
To 1 Year
US$

Over
1 Year
US$

31,244
31,244

-

-

-

9,830
4,503
7,945
3,394
2,014
3,558

-

-

-

31,244

-

-

-

2020
ORGANIC LONG/SHORT ALPHA Fund

Cash and cash equivalents
Total Financial Assets
Depositary fees payable
Directors fees payable
Audit fees payable
Administration fees payable
Liquidation fee payable
Other accounts payable and accrued expenses
Net assets attributable to Holders of
Redeemable Participating Shares
Total Financial Liabilities
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8.

Risk Management (continued)
(b) Liquidity Risk (continued)
2020
MERCANTILE DIVERSIFIED Fund

Less than
1 Month
GBP

1–3
Months
GBP

3 Months
To 1 Year
GBP

Over
1 Year
GBP

Cash and cash equivalents
Total Financial Assets

71,127
71,127

-

-

-

Depositary fees payable
Directors fees payable
Audit fees payable
Liquidation fee payable
Other accounts payable and accrued expenses
Net assets attributable to Holders of
Redeemable Participating Shares
Total Financial Liabilities

200
3,128
6,387
1,399
60,013

-

-

-

71,127

-

-

-

Less than
1 Month
GBP

1–3
Months
GBP

3 Months
To 1 Year
GBP

Over
1 Year
GBP

Cash and cash equivalents
Total Financial Assets

69,321
69,321

-

-

-

Depositary fees payable
Directors fees payable
Audit fees payable
Liquidation fee payable
Other accounts payable and accrued expenses
Net assets attributable to Holders of
Redeemable Participating Shares
Total Financial Liabilities

200
3,128
6,711
1,399
57,883

-

-

-

69,321

-

-

-

Less than
1 Month
US$

1–3
Months
US$

3 Months
To 1 Year
US$

Over
1 Year
US$

Cash and cash equivalents
Total Financial Assets

286,359
286,359

-

-

-

Depositary fees payable
Directors fees payable
Audit fees payable
Administration fees payable
Liquidation fee payable
Other accounts payable and accrued expenses
Net assets attributable to Holders of
Redeemable Participating Shares
Total Financial Liabilities

19,658
16,797
33,750
6,313
7,474
202,367

-

-

-

286,359

-

-

-

2020
MERCANTILE OPPORTUNITIES Fund

2020
Company
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8.

Risk Management (continued)
(b) Liquidity Risk (continued)
2019
ORGANIC BOND Fund

Less than
1 Month
GBP

1–3
Months
GBP

3 Months
To 1 Year
GBP

Over
1 Year
GBP

41,638
41,638

-

-

734,993*
734,993

285
6,349
705
5,143

-

-

-

12,482

-

764,149
764,149

-

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Cash and cash equivalents
Total Financial Assets
Depositary fees payable
Audit fees payable
Administration fees payable
Other accounts payable and accrued expenses
Net assets attributable to Holders of
Redeemable Participating Shares
Total Financial Liabilities

*These are illiquid securities and were suspended to redemptions in November 2018. An overview of the securities of the Sub
Fund are detailed on page 74.
2019
ORGANIC LONG/SHORT ALPHA Fund

Less than
1 Month
US$

1–3
Months
US$

3 Months
To 1 Year
US$

Over
1 Year
US$

42,130
42,130

-

-

152,151*
152,151

81
8,422
936
6,261

-

-

-

15,700

-

178,581
178,581

-

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Cash and cash equivalents
Total Financial Assets
Depositary fees payable
Audit fees payable
Administration fees payable
Other accounts payable and accrued expenses
Net assets attributable to Holders of
Redeemable Participating Shares
Total Financial Liabilities

*These are illiquid securities and were suspended to redemptions in November 2018. An overview of the securities of the Sub
Fund are detailed on page 74.
2019
MERCANTILE DIVERSIFIED Fund

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Cash and cash equivalents
Interest receivable
Dividend receivable
Prepayments and other receivables
Total Financial Assets

Less than
1 Month
GBP

1–3
Months
GBP

3 Months
To 1 Year
GBP

Over
1 Year
GBP

4,542,237
325,908
8,725
9,611
36
4,886,517

-

593,595
593,595

966,474
966,474
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8.

Risk Management (continued)
(b) Liquidity Risk (continued)
2019
MERCANTILE DIVERSIFIED Fund
(continued)

Less than
1 Month
GBP

1–3
Months
GBP

3 Months
To 1 Year
GBP

Over
1 Year
GBP

2,805
8,168
3,003
6,349
3,596
11,916

-

-

-

6,410,749
6,446,586

-

-

-

Less than
1 Month
GBP

1–3
Months
GBP

3 Months
To 1 Year
GBP

Over
1 Year
GBP

4,443,808
539,583
796
36
4,984,223

-

169,656
169,656

508,022
508,022

2,444
16,915
3,003
6,349
3,596
10,890

-

-

-

5,618,704
5,661,901

-

-

-

Less than
1 Month
GBP

1–3
Months
GBP

3 Months
To 1 Year
GBP

Over
1 Year
GBP

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Cash and cash equivalents
Prepayments and other receivables
Total Financial Assets

23,012
509
23,521

-

-

-

Depositary fees payable
Directors fees payable
Other accounts payable and accrued expenses
Net assets attributable to Holders of
Redeemable Participating Shares
Total Financial Liabilities

6,540
1,904
15,077

-

-

-

23,521

-

-

-

Management fees payable
Depositary fees payable
Directors fees payable
Audit fees payable
Administration fees payable
Other accounts payable and accrued expenses
Net assets attributable to Holders of
Redeemable Participating Shares
Total Financial Liabilities
2019
MERCANTILE OPPORTUNITIES Fund

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Cash and cash equivalents
Dividend receivable
Prepayments and other receivables
Total Financial Assets
Management fees payable
Depositary fees payable
Directors fees payable
Audit fees payable
Administration fees payable
Other accounts payable and accrued expenses
Net assets attributable to Holders of
Redeemable Participating Shares
Total Financial Liabilities
2019
LONG/SHORT ALPHA Fund
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Risk Management (continued)
(b) Liquidity Risk (continued)
2019
GLOBAL BOND Fund

Less than
1 Month
GBP

1–3
Months
GBP

3 Months
To 1 Year
GBP

Over
1 Year
GBP

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Cash and cash equivalents
Prepayments and other receivables
Total Financial Assets

40,510
581
41,091

-

-

-

Management fees payable
Depositary fees payable
Directors fees payable
Other accounts payable and accrued expenses
Net assets attributable to Holders of
Redeemable Participating Shares
Total Financial Liabilities

219
6,540
2,575
31,757

-

-

-

41,091

-

-

-

Less than
1 Month
US$

1–3
Months
US$

3 Months
To 1 Year
US$

Over
1 Year
US$

11,918,191
1,329,504
11,572
13,803
1,542
13,274,612

-

1,012,300
1,012,300

3,082,596
3,082,596

7,251
51,074
13,906
33,688
11,409
105,445

-

-

-

15,954,663
16,177,436

-

1,192,072
1,192,072

-

2019
Company

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Cash and cash equivalents
Interest receivable
Dividend receivable
Prepayments and other receivables
Total Financial Assets
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss
Management fees payable
Depositary fees payable
Directors fees payable
Audit fees payable
Administration fees payable
Other accounts payable and accrued expenses
Net assets attributable to Holders of
Redeemable Participating Shares
Total Financial Liabilities
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Risk Management (continued)
(c) Market Risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate. Market risk comprises three
types of risk: currency risk, interest rate risk and price risk.
Some of the recognised exchanges in which the Company may invest may be less well-regulated than those in developed markets
and may prove to be illiquid, insufficiently liquid or highly volatile from time to time. This may affect the price at which the
Company may liquidate positions to meet redemption requests or other funding requirements. In addition, the investments of
the Company are subject to normal market fluctuations and the risks inherent to investment in international securities markets
and there can be no assurances that appreciation or preservation of capital will occur.
Details for each of the Sub Fund’s investment portfolio as at 5 November 2020 are disclosed in the Portfolio Statement on pages
92 to 94.
(i) Price Risk
Price risk is the risk of changes in the fair values of equities or equity-linked derivatives as the result of changes in market prices.
The equity price risk exposure arises from each of the Sub Fund’s investments in equity securities and from equity-linked
derivatives.
The Directors manage the market price risk inherent in the Company’s portfolio by ensuring full and timely access to relevant
information from the Investment Manager. The Directors seek to ensure that an appropriate proportion for each of the Fund’s
portfolio is invested in cash and readily realisable securities, which are sufficient to meet any funding commitments that may
arise.
As each of the Sub Fund’s financial instruments are carried at fair value with fair value changes recognised in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income, all changes in market price will directly affect net investment income.
The following is an analysis of the each of the Sub Fund’s investment portfolio by industry diversification, net of the long and
short positions held by the each of the Sub Fund as at the reporting date:

ORGANIC BOND Fund
Funds

5 November 2020
% of investments
-*
-

31 December 2019
% of investments
100.00%
100%

ORGANIC LONG/SHORT ALPHA Fund
Funds

5 November 2020
% of investments
-*
-

31 December 2019
% of investments
100.00%
100%

* As at 5 November 2020, the Organic Bond Fund and the Organic Long/Short Alpha Fund held investment with nil fair value.
5 November 2020
% of investments
-

MERCANTILE DIVERSIFIED Fund
Basic Materials
Communications
Consumer, Cyclical
Consumer, Non-cyclical
Energy
Financial
Funds
Non-Financial corporations
Technology
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31 December 2019
% of investments
5.15%
6.54%
8.81%
13.30%
2.59%
13.51%
34.24%
13.41%
2.45%
100%

THE MULTI-MANAGER UCITS PLATFORM FUND PLC
Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the financial period from 1 January 2020 to 5 November 2020
8.

Risk Management (continued)
(c) Market Risk (continued)
(i) Price Risk (continued)
5 November 2020
% of investments
-

MERCANTILE OPPORTUNITIES Fund
Basic Materials
Communications
Consumer, Cyclical
Consumer, Non-cyclical
Equity
Financial
Funds
Investment funds (IFs)
Non-Financial corporations
Technology

31 December 2019
% of investments
4.26%
7.33%
5.73%
5.89%
2.82%
15.37%
43.19%
1.96%
6.98%
6.47%
100%

As at 5 November 2020, the Mercantile Diversified Fund, the Mercantile Opportunities Fund, the Long/Short Alpha Fund and
the Global Bond Fund held no investment, therefore the Sub-Funds are not exposed to the price risk.
Sensitivity Analysis
At the 5 November 2020, had the stock price strengthened by 5% with all other variables held constant, Net Assets attributable
to the holders of redeemable participating shares would have increased by GBP Nil (31 December 2019: GBP36,750) on the
Organic Bond Fund, by USD Nil (31 December 2019: USD7,608) on the Organic Long Short Alpha Fund, by GBP Nil (31
December 2019: GBP305,115) on the Mercantile Diversified Fund and by GBP Nil (31 December 2019: GBP256,074) on the
Mercantile Opportunities Fund. A 5% weakening of the global equity markets with all other variables held constant would have
resulted in an equal but opposite effect. Actual trading results may differ from this sensitivity analysis and the difference may
be material.
(ii) Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market interest rates.
The majority of the Company’s financial assets are listed in bond investments which are characterized by short duration and
high rating and as such the impact of the interest rate risk, results to be low on these investments.
Sensitivity Analysis
The sensitivity of the Sub-Fund's comprehensive income for the year and the Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable
Participating shares to a reasonable possible change in interest rates by 1%, with all other variables held constant would have
resulted in increase in interest income of USD Nil (31 December 2019: USD 344) on The Organic Bond Fund, USD 47 (31
December 2019: USD 274) on The Organic Long/Short Alpha Fund, USD 200 (31 December 2019: USD 744) on The Mercantile
Diversified Fund, USD 2 (31 December 2019: USD 25) on The Mercantile Opportunities Fund, USD Nil (31 December 2019:
USD 10) on The Long/Short Alpha Fund and USD Nil (31 December 2019: USD 30) on The Global Bond Fund.
The Company’s interest rate exposure is also to its cash and cash equivalent holdings which are detailed in Note 5 and also
interest earned on bonds as disclosed in Note 8(a).
Organic Bond Fund - 2020
Assets
Cash

Interest bearing
-
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Non-Interest bearing
54,296

Total
54,296
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Risk Management (continued)
(c) Market Risk (continued)
(ii) Interest rate risk (continued)
Sensitivity Analysis (continued)
Organic Long/Short Alpha Fund - 2020
Assets
Interest bearing
Cash

Non-Interest bearing
31,244

Total

-

Mercantile Diversified Fund- 2020
Assets
Interest bearing
Cash

Non-Interest bearing
71,127

Total

-

Mercantile Opportunities Fund- 2020
Assets
Interest bearing
Cash

Non-Interest bearing
69,321

Total

-

31,244

71,127

69,321

As at 5 November 2020, the Long/Short Alpha Fund and the Global Bond Fund did not hold any investments and cash, therefore
the Sub-Funds are not exposed to the interest rate risk.
Organic Bond Fund - 2019
Assets
Fund Investment
Cash

Interest bearing

Organic Long/Short Alpha Fund - 2019
Assets
Interest bearing
Fund Investment
Cash

Non-Interest bearing
734,993
41,638

Total

-

Non-Interest bearing
152,151
42,130

Total

-

Non-Interest bearing

Total
1,560,069
3,203,214
1,339,022
325,908

Mercantile Diversified Fund- 2019
Assets
Interest bearing
Bonds
1,560,069
Equities
Exchange Traded Fund
Cash
Mercantile Opportunities Fund- 2019
Assets
Interest bearing
Bonds
169,656
Equities
Fund Investment
Exchange Traded Fund
Cash
Long/Short Alpha Fund - 2019
Assets
Cash

Interest bearing

Global Bond Fund- 2019
Assets
Cash

Interest bearing
-
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3,203,214
1,339,022
325,908

Non-Interest bearing
2,996,333
508,022
1,447,475
539,583

734,993
41,638

152,151
42,130

Total
169,656
2,996,333
508,022
1,447,475
539,583

Non-Interest bearing
23,012

Total

Non-Interest bearing
40,510

Total

23,012

40,510
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8.

Risk Management (continued)
(c) Market Risk (continued)
(iii) Currency risk
Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
foreign exchange rates.
Sensitivity Analysis
A significant portion of the Company’s assets may be denominated in a currency other than the base currency of the Company,
the Fund or a Class. There is the risk that the value of such assets and/or the value of any distributions from such assets may
decrease if the underlying currency in which assets are traded falls relative to the base currency in which Shares of the relevant
Fund are valued and priced. The Company is not required to hedge its foreign currency risk, although it may do so through
foreign currency exchange contracts, forward contracts, currency options and other methods.
To the extent that the Company does not hedge its foreign currency risk or such hedging is incomplete or unsuccessful, the value
of that Company’s assets and income could be adversely affected by currency exchange rate movements. There may also be
circumstances in which a hedging transaction may reduce currency gains that would otherwise arise in the valuation of the
Company in circumstances where no such hedging transactions are undertaken.
5 November 2020

ORGANIC BOND Fund
Euro*

Financial
assets at fair
value through
profit or loss
GBP
-

Financial
liabilities at
fair value
through
profit or loss
GBP
-

Other net
assets /
(liabilities)
GBP
(21,921)
(21,921)

Net assets /
(liabilities)
GBP
(21,921)
(21,921)

Total
Exposure
%
100.00%
100.00%

*Currencies are for Share Class Hedging – Actual trading results may differ from this sensitivity analysis and the difference may be material.

31 December 2019

ORGANIC BOND Fund
Canadian Dollar
Euro*
Mexican Peso*
United States Dollar

Financial
assets at fair
value through
profit or loss
GBP
238,240
238,240

Financial
liabilities at
fair value
through
profit or loss
GBP
-

Other net
assets /
(liabilities)
GBP
1
28,571
1
1,057
29,630

Net assets /
(liabilities)
GBP
1
266,811
1
1,057
267,870

Total
Exposure
%
0.00%
99.61%
0.00%
0.39%
100.00%

*Currencies are for Share Class Hedging – Actual trading results may differ from this sensitivity analysis and the difference may be material.

At the 5 November 2020, had the GBP strengthened by 5% in relation to all currencies, with all other variables held constant,
net assets attributable to Holders of Redeemable Participating Shares would have decreased by GBP(1,096) (31 December 2019:
GBP13,394).
A 5% weakening of the GBP against the above currencies would have resulted in an equal but opposite effect on the above
financial statement amounts to the amounts shown above, on the basis that all other variables remain constant.
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Risk Management (continued)
(c) Market Risk (continued)
(iii) Currency risk (continued)
Sensitivity Analysis (continued)
5 November 2020
ORGANIC LONG/SHORT
ALPHA Fund
Euro*
Great Britain pound*

31 December 2019
ORGANIC LONG/SHORT
ALPHA Fund
Euro*
Great Britain pound*
Hong Kong Doller

Financial
assets at fair
value through
profit or loss
US$
-

Financial
assets at fair
value through
profit or loss
US$
152,151
152,151

Financial
liabilities at
fair value
through
profit or loss
US$
-

Other net
assets /
(liabilities)
US$
(48,057)
30,598
(17,459)

Net assets /
(liabilities)
US$
(48,057)
30,598
(17,459)

Total
Exposure
%
275.26%
(175.26)%
100.00%

-

Other net
assets /
(liabilities)
US$
(5,603)
17,575
4
11,976

Net assets /
(liabilities)
US$
(5,603)
169,726
4
164,127

Total
Exposure
%
(3.41)%
103.41%
0.00%
100.00%

Financial
liabilities at
fair value
through
profit or loss
US$

*Currencies are for Share Class Hedging – Actual trading results may differ from this sensitivity analysis and the difference may be material.

At the 5 November 2020, had the US Dollar strengthened by 5% in relation to all currencies, with all other variables held
constant, net assets attributable to Holders of Redeemable Participating Shares would have decreased by US$(873) (31 December
2019: US$8,206).
A 5% weakening of the US Dollar against the above currencies would have resulted in an equal but opposite effect on the above
financial statement amounts to the amounts shown above, on the basis that all other variables remain constant.
5 November 2020
MERCANTILE DIVERSIFIED
Fund
Euro*
Swedish Krona Equals

Financial
assets at fair
value through
profit or loss
GBP
-

Financial assets
at fair value
through other
comprehensive
income
GBP
-

Other net
assets /
(liabilities)
GBP
(105,355)
1
(105,354)

Net assets /
(liabilities)
GBP
(105,355)
1
(105,354)

*Currencies are for Share Class Hedging – Actual trading results may differ from this sensitivity analysis and the difference may be material.
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Total
Exposure
%
100.00%
0.00%
100.00%
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Risk Management (continued)
(c) Market Risk (continued)
(iii) Currency risk (continued)
Sensitivity Analysis (continued)
31 December 2019
MERCANTILE DIVERSIFIED
Fund
Euro*
United States Dollar
Australian Dollar
Canadian Dollar
Swiss Franc
Hong Kong Dollar
Swedish Krona Equals

Financial
assets at fair
value through
profit or loss
GBP
844,736
929,971
182,413
307,402
125,458
712,345
96,761
3,199,086

Financial assets
at fair value
through other
comprehensive
income
GBP
-

Other net
assets /
(liabilities)
GBP
(26,176)
11,871
28,030
3,299
328
11,304
1,907
30,563

Net assets /
(liabilities)
GBP
818,560
941,842
210,443
310,701
125,786
723,649
98,668
3,229,649

Total
Exposure
%
25.35%
29.16%
6.52%
9.62%
3.89%
22.41%
3.05%
100.00%

*Currencies are for Share Class Hedging – Actual trading results may differ from this sensitivity analysis and the difference may be material.

At the 5 November 2020, had the GBP strengthened by 5% in relation to all currencies, with all other variables held constant,
net assets attributable to Holders of Redeemable Participating Shares would have decreased by GBP(5,268) (31 December 2019:
GBP161,482).
A 5% weakening of the GBP against the above currencies would have resulted in an equal but opposite effect on the above
financial statement amounts to the amounts shown above, on the basis that all other variables remain constant.
5 November 2020
MERCANTILE
OPPORTUNITIES Fund
Euro*
Hong Kong Dollar

31 December 2019
MERCANTILE
OPPORTUNITIES Fund
Euro*
Hong Kong Dollar
United States Dollar

Financial
assets at fair
value through
profit or loss
GBP
-

Financial
liabilities at
fair value
through
profit or loss
GBP
-

Other net
assets /
(liabilities)
GBP
(102,531)
(1)
(102,532)

Net assets /
(liabilities)
GBP
(102,531)
(1)
(102,532)

Total
Exposure
%
100.00%
0.00%
100.00%

Financial
assets at fair
value through
profit or loss
GBP
718,782
1,074,203
1,792,985

Financial
liabilities at
fair value
through
profit or loss
GBP
-

Other net
assets /
(liabilities)
GBP
(28,350)
3
9,448
(18,899)

Net assets /
(liabilities)
GBP
690,432
3
1,083,651
1,774,086

Total
Exposure
%
38.92%
0.00%
61.08%
100.00%

*Currencies are for Share Class Hedging – Actual trading results may differ from this sensitivity analysis and the difference may be material.
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Risk Management (continued)
(c) Market Risk (continued)
(iii) Currency risk (continued)
A 5% weakening of the GBP against the above currencies would have resulted in an equal but opposite effect on the above
financial statement amounts to the amounts shown above, on the basis that all other variables remain constant.
As at 5 November 2020, the Long/Short Alpha Fund held no financial assets and liabilities, therefore the Sub Fund is not exposed
to currency risk.
31 December 2019

LONG/SHORT ALPHA Fund
Euro*
Hong Kong dollar
United States Dollar

Financial
liabilities at
fair value
through
profit or loss
GBP
-

Financial
assets at fair
value through
profit or loss
GBP
-

Other net
assets /
(liabilities)
GBP
(153)
6
328
181

Net assets /
(liabilities)
GBP
(153)
6
328
181

Total
Exposure
%
(84.53%)
3.31%
181.22%
100.00%

*Currencies are for Share Class Hedging – Actual trading results may differ from this sensitivity analysis and the difference may be material.

At the 31 December 2019, had the GBP strengthened by 5% in relation to all currencies, with all other variables held constant,
net assets attributable to Holders of Redeemable Participating Shares would have decreased by GBP9.
A 5% weakening of the GBP against the above currencies would have resulted in an equal but opposite effect on the above
financial statement amounts to the amounts shown above, on the basis that all other variables remain constant.
As at 5 November 2020, the Global Bond Fund held no financial assets and liabilities, therefore the Sub Fund is not exposed to
currency risk.
In Global Bond Fund, all financial assets and liabilities are denominated in GBP. As a result, there was no significant foreign
exchange risk as at 31 December 2019.
Actual trading results may differ from this sensitivity analysis and the difference may be material.
(iv) Fair value hierarchy of financial assets and liabilities
The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments by valuation
technique:
-Level 1: quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;
-Level 2: those involving inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (as prices) or indirectly (derived from prices); and
-Level 3: those whose inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).
The Company’s investments as at 5 November 2020 in unlisted bond investments fall under both Level 2 and Level 3 category.
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Risk Management (continued)
(c) Market Risk (continued)
(iv) Fair value hierarchy of financial assets and liabilities (continued)
At 5 November 2020, all financial investments were held at their estimated fair value based on available market information.
For other financial instruments, including cash and cash equivalents, interest receivable and other assets, amounts receivable on
securities sold, amounts payable for securities purchased, accounts payable and, administration fees payable, the carrying
amounts approximate fair value due to the immediate or short-term nature of these financial instruments.
At 5 November 2020, the Organic Bond Fund level 3 securities valued at GBP Nil include the below holdings:
5 November 2020
Description

GBP Fair Value

ADV Holding Ltd. 10.00% 03/12/2019
All Saints Commercial 8.00% 31/12/2023
Apollo Commercial Property Plc 5% 31/12/2025
Audley Funding Plc 6.00 15/11/2036
Ballarat Property Plc 5.50% 31/12/2025
Carpe Valorem 7.00% 29/07/2021
Emplc 2016-4EU A 3.50% 23/06/2031
Energy Circle 6.50% 01/12/2023
Ethika Finance Plc 8.50% 13/01/2022
Ethika Sustainable Impact Fund EUR Class A
Ethika Sustainable Impact Fund EUR Class B
ETI Securities Plc
IPO Capital Plc 7.25% 31/03/2022
Konstanz Finance Ltd. Aug 21 5.525%.
Konstanz Finance Ltd. Aug 23 6.25%
Progression Escher Marwick Plc 5.50% 17/10/2036
The Resort Grp Etp 1 GBP Series 2016-04 Emarwick 0.00% 23/06/2031
Via Developments 7.00% 19/10/2020

-

% of NAV
-

The information used in carrying out the valuation of the level 3 instruments as at 31 December 2019 is based on:
1. Market price sources (Bloomberg), broker valuations and market liquidity premia. Such information is checked against
other data relating to the security, such as the status of coupon payments.
2. In the absence of such information a credit risk of assessment has been carried out using the most up to date information
on the issuer and the underlying collateral. Where possible news on the issuer has been collated and updated periodically
3. The valuations also implicitly take account of estimates of default probability and recovery rate based on market
assumptions for similar assets.
4. Sensitivity to assumptions have also where relevant been reported
Outlined is specific details relating to the positions listed in the above table.
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Risk Management (continued)
(c) Market Risk (continued)
(iv) Fair value hierarchy of financial assets and liabilities (continued)
The outbreak of COVID-19 / Coronavirus has further impaired the value of the securities held in the portfolios of the Organic
Bond and Organic Long Short fund.
The most significant downward adjustment concerns the positions which are linked to loans to The Resort Group PLC (TRG).
TRG is a property company with a focus on investments in tourism in Capo Verde. Over the past decade they have built at least
three resort on Sal Island which are currently managed by the Meliá Group. There have been plans to complete further resorts
on the islands (notably for the Hilton hotels group) but these have been repeatedly delayed owing to the inability to raise
financing.
TRG is heavily indebted and currently in discussions to restructure its debt. The latest financial statements were published in
2017 and describe a significantly impaired financial position.
CORONAVIRUS will have significantly worsened this situation:
(i) The deep recession engendered by COVID-19 and the measures to restrict movement will have a major impact on
tourism. The World Tourism Organisation estimates a contraction in tourism worldwide of up to 30% in. Share prices
of hotel groups have fallen by close to 80%.
(ii) several major travel groups on which TRG was relying have either entered bankruptcy (Thomas Cook) or required
emergency financing (TUI). Pre-sale agreements are likely to plummet in coming months furthering deepening the
travails of the property group
(iii) the disruption will further delay the construction projects in which TRG is involved (Boa Vista for the Steigenberger
Group has already been delayed from 2020 to 2022)
(iv) in light of (i-iii), credit spreads are widening and inevitably heavily indebted companies such as TRG will face difficulty
in refinancing their outstanding debt.
These developments suggest that the prospect of recovery on the Resort group related assets remains very low and the probability
of finding a buyer extremely unlikely. This warrants a valuation of zero on these positions.
Audley 6 11/15/36 Corp
THE RESORT GRP ETP 1 GBP SERIES 2016-04 EMARWICK.
PROGRESSION ESCHER MARWICK PLC 5.5% 10/17/36 CORP.
EMPLC 2016-4EU A 3.5% 06/23/2031.

GB00BYWLR183
GB00BD4F3X58
GB00BD0FRG07
GB00BD4F4095

In addition to being held directly by the fund, these securities are also held by the Ethika Sustainable Impact Fund (GBP Class
B, ISIN: MT7000013249 and EUR Class A, ISIN: MT7000013231).
Ethika Sustainable Impact Fund EUR Class A
Cost:
GBP 831,183
Fair Value:
GBP Nil (2019: GBP 238,240)
% of NAV:
0.00%
Ethika Sustainable Impact Fund GBP Class B
Cost:
GBP 1,500,123
Fair Value:
GBP Nil (2019: GBP 496,753)
% of NAV:
0.00%
The Ethika SICAV was suspended to redemptions in November 2018. Following the suspension, a number of redemptions were
processed and received by the Organic funds at a NAV value that was discounted by roughly 10%. No official NAV valuations
have been received after the suspension owing to the difficulty in carrying our valuations given the illiquidity of holdings. The
individual security positions in the fund were provided by the Sicav for end-December 2018 after year end. During the course
of 2019, a series of enquiries (in collaboration with the only other shareholder, WAY Fund managers were made to the former
investment manager, Altarius (no information has been provided by the fund administrator APEX -Malta).
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(c) Market Risk (continued)
(iv) Fair value hierarchy of financial assets and liabilities (continued)
Altarius has provided a breakdown of the current portfolio and its evolution over the past three years. While such data is not
audited, it represents a good basis for carrying out a tentative valuation of the fund by using other third-party information
available to EGI.
a.

Some of the securities held in the portfolio of the Ethika Sustainable Finance fund are also held directly by the Organic
bond or Organic Long/Short fund.(e.g. Carpe Valorem) and/or issued by the same issuer (e.g. Escher Marwick). Altarius
(as EGI with the Organic fund) has been unable to sell the positions.

b.

Alterius considers that several bonds should be written off: Carpe Valorem (see EGI valuation), a bond issued by Organic
IS, and the two Tristone bonds (which have never been current on payment). The Escher Marwick security
(GB00BD4F4095) lined to the Resort Group is impaired and is written off.

c.

Other securities are impaired or coupon payments have not been made. In particular the All Saints 6.5% has not paid coupons
since 2018.

d.

The Dover Harcourt Securitisation vehicle has remained current with their coupon payments up to February 2020. The
accounts for 2017 and 2018 show that payments have flowed through the vehicle and that there are no other assets save
those relating to these interest payments. The accounts of the vehicle, the Prospectus (investment memorandum) and other
information do not provide any guidance to the underlying assets backing the issuance (“real estate, investments and
services”). In light of the COVID-19 crisis it is likely that the ability to service the vehicle has been impaired. In light of
these considerations, the relatively long maturity and the illiquidity of the security a discount appears warranted.

e.

The Audley Funding vehicle has remained current with their coupon payments up to February 2020. As regards Audley
funding the underlying borrower in this securitization is NQ Minerals Plc., a precious metals production and exploration
company with its operations centered around its Hellyer Operations in Tasmania, Australia. The company posted very
significant losses in 2018 (£27.5 million) and 2019 (£35.9 million). These accumulated losses have brought net equity to £56 million at end-2019. It should also be noted that the auditors for 2018 considered under Key Audit Matters that such
refinancing was essential to the company’s existence as a going concern. However, NQ Minerals announced a refinancing
facility with ING bank in August 2020 whose objective is to lower the financing cost on (£56 million debt). In light of these
concerns it is felt that this particular Audley funding securitization should be valued significantly written in respect of its
face value.

f.

As regards the other bond issued through the Escher Marwick securitization vehicle (GB00BDH37892) the largest
underlying exposure is to Just Cash Flow plc a specialist lender to UK. The company posted strong revenue growth in 2018
but also made significant losses. It is heavily dependent on the support of its parent company, the JLG Group. The Group
at end-2018 appeared to have a strong cash position although it too recorded significant losses (and additional impairments
to subsidiaries). The financial statements debentures were originally secured on first charge against all the assets of the
group. The first charge was subsequently released in July 2019. No financial statements are as yet available for 2019 from
just cashflow or the Just Group. The Group has in all likelihood suffered significant impairments as a result of COVID-19.
This exposure should also conservatively be written down to nil.

Altarius has also informed of legal proceedings in Northern Ireland by BDO against a former director of the fund (Gareth
O’Connell). In particular, an update of was provided by Alterius regarding the claims against the fund. The potential claims and
legal costs exceed £1 million. The blocking of accounts and activity of the fund as well as the uncertain outcome of the legal
proceedings are a major risk and with considerable likelihood may fully absorb all the residual estimated value of the fund.
Accordingly, it is deemed that the fund be valued at nil.
Altarius has waived its fees but running expenses associated with the fund, including custody, administration regulatory ecc.
appear to be around EUR 20,000-25,000 a year.
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(c) Market Risk (continued)
(iv) Fair value hierarchy of financial assets and liabilities (continued)
The below securities remain at a zero valuation.
ADV Holding Ltd
Cost:
GBP 1,845,240
Fair Value 2020: GBP Nil (2019: GBP Nil)
% of NAV:
0.00%
On 31 August 2017 the issuer announced that trespassers had prevent the Issuer from exercising full physical and legal control
over the Properties. The Issuer has taken appropriate and available commercial and legal measures within Angola in its efforts
to re-establish possession and control over the Properties and ensure that the collection of rental revenues from the Properties
continues to the extent possible. Angolan courts had failed to carry out any enforcement orders. As a result the coupon payments
have been suspended.
It is difficult to foresee the outcome of any legal proceeding; the properties continue to be in the hands of trespassers two years
after the occupation. Giving the impending maturity of the bond it is difficult not to foresee that repayment will be seriously
delayed. The assets should be considered impaired.
In November 2019, a notice to bondholders asked for the extension of the maturity date by two years to 3 December 2021, an
option for the Issuer to redeem all or part of the Bonds at par plus accrued interest to the date fixed for redemption, a waiver for
any breach or event of default and that the bonds will no longer be listed on the Irish Stock Exchange. The bonds ceased to be
admitted to trading on 31 May 2019.
In early 2019, Angola entered into a settlement agreement in which it agreed to make a lump-sum of $47.5 million to the Issuer
in exchange for it to relinquish all its rights and claims relating to the properties. The Angolan government later failed to make
the lump-sum and further legal proceedings in US courts were made in May 2019 against it for refusal to honour the settlement.
Legal proceedings have expended extensive corporate resources but allowed the Issuer to gain support from the US government
and members of Congress and the Treasury.
There is some possibility that a minimal recovery may occur. A valuation of the timing and amount is however subject to extreme
uncertainty: the bond may potentially be worthless or alternatively it may be possible that a small percentage of face value may
eventually be recovered if legal proceedings are successful.
The Angolan government appointed in 2017 has been attempting to reduce corruption and money laundering perpetrated by
government officials of the previous administration, as indicated by the recent prosecution for fraud and embezzlement and
freezing of assets of the former president’s daughter, Isabel dos Santos. While there appear to be no connections between the
former president and the trespassers, the ADV structure appears to have linkages to PEPs and was also mentioned in the Panama
Papers. It is not clear whether the current government could consider ADV as part of a corrupt scheme.
In light of these considerations, it seems appropriate to fully write down the valuation to $0.
Ethika Finance Plc 8.50% 13/01/2022
Cost:
GBP 300,338
Fair Value 2020: GBP Nil (2019: GBP Nil)
% of NAV:
0.00%
Ethika Finance Plc is a specialist UK funding company which raises capital from public and private sources for the purpose of
investing in UK companies. Ethika Finance Plc has a management and advisory team which includes specialists in underwriting,
capital raising and the ongoing management of specialist finance transactions. According to their website, so far there is only
project in development which is the GBP 20 million secured fixed rate notes due in 2022.
The bond is listed on the Frankfurt Stock Exchange but is currently very illiquid, with minimal to no trading activity. Fair value
valuations in the Multi-Manager UCITS Platform Fund PLC financial accounts have reduced the value of the investment from
GBP 317,165 in December 2017 to GBP 104,115. Coupon payments of £ 25,285.12 have been paid on schedule on 17 January
2018 and 21 January 2019 However, an announcement on 13 January 2020 stated that interest due on the Notes that day was
not made as a result of non-payment of amounts owed to the Issuer by Wesley Limited, the sponsor of Allied Care Group, which
made payment to Noteholders impossible due to funding constraints.
Insofar as the issuer has been unable to pay coupon payments in time and pending further action, we assess the likelihood of
default to 100%.
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(c) Market Risk (continued)
(iv) Fair value hierarchy of financial assets and liabilities (continued)
Carpe Valorem 7.00% 29/07/2021
Cost:
GBP 200,000
Fair Value 2020: GBP Nil (2019: GBP Nil)
% of NAV:
0.00%
The valuations of Carpe Valorem have been gradually reduced in line with the information received from the issuer and other
investors. In conversation the issuer has suggested that the Potential Recovery is very low (<20%).
A restructuring Deed was issued on 20th April 2020 which resulted in the holding being cancelled from the custody system. The
underlying Company is in liquidation. There do not appear at present sufficient grounds to believe that there will be significant
recovery of assets, communication from the liquidator indicates a number of expenses. A valuation of £0 is reflective of the
heightened uncertainty and the overall illiquidity of the claim.
All Saints Commercial 8.00% 31/12/2023
Cost:
GBP 867,600
Fair Value 2020: GBP Nil (2019: GBP Nil)
% of NAV:
0.00%
The company specializes in acquiring property development sites predominately in the North of England and Scotland. The
funding principally would be by way of the issuance of the 8% 2023 Bonds. Management is looking to expand into luxury
residential developments in the North of England with investments ranging from 2 to 5 years and Company funds deriving from
the end sale of residential units.
According to the company’s website, over the next 20 years the number of UK households is expected to rise by 250,000 per
year, underscoring the urgent requirement for further housing. UK property has proved to be a sustainable means to long-term
returns and, due to the increased demand in rental properties, investment in housing is relatively secure.
The company’s accounts up to 31 December 2018 are overdue and the last published accounts date to 31 May 2018. Two current
residential developments in Morar House, Helensburgh and Aidan Gardens, Belmont are shown on the website, as well as
another eight recently completed projects indicated in the 2023 Bonds Brochure published on 15 January 2016 and the financial
statement for 31 May 2018.
The losses reported in the company accounts up to 31 May 2018 of GBP -3,329,008 suggest the untenability of the investment
unless the proposed residential developments in the pipeline are successfully realized and sold.
On 7 April 2020, the Registrar of Companies announced that the issuer will be struck off the register and dissolved within 2
months of the announcement. This action was suspended as an objection was received. However accounts remained unfiled and
company is noted as having an active proposal to strike-off.
Audley 6 11/15/36 Corp.
Cost:
GBP 2,677,454
Fair Value 2020: GBP Nil (2019: GBP Nil)
% of NAV:
0.00%
On 13 September 2019 the security was delisted from the International Stock Exchange. No further information has been made
available.
The Frankfurt stock exchange continued to post a value of the securities close to par.
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(c) Market Risk (continued)
(iv) Fair value hierarchy of financial assets and liabilities (continued)
The previous valuation was consistent with a default probability of 60%, a recovery rate of 60% and a 20% liquidity haircut.
This valuation is no longer considered appropriate for the following reasons:
1. The security is in default
2.
3.

The TRG group faces financial distress. This distress is accentuated by the difficulties of all major travel groups although
TRG is tied to TUI which has reported positive earnings in 2019 and potential increase in market share as a result of the
Thomas Cook bankruptcy
The absence of any information by the note issuer

It is the opinion of the Directors that the probability of default has now risen to 100%. This holding is also impacted by the
COVID 19 situation noted above.
EM Plc 2016-4EU A 3.5% 06/23/2031 (EUR)
Cost:
GBP 815,161
Fair Value 2020: GBP Nil (2019: GBP Nil)
% of NAV:
0.00%
EM Plc 2016-4GBP A 3.5% 06/23/2031 (GBP) / The Resort GRP ETP 1 GBP Series 2016-04 Emarwick
Cost:
GBP 2,006,536
Fair Value 2020: GBP Nil (2019: GBP Nil)
% of NAV:
0.00%
The Escher Marwick is considered stale. The bid price reported by the Frankfurt exchange is 100. No trading volume was
recorded.
It appears that the property investments of the Resort Group have not been as profitable as originally envisaged in the offering
memoranda despite the continuing growth in tourism to Cabo Verde. Furthermore, press reports indicate that the Resort Group
appears to be under considerable financial difficulties. In the latest financial statements for Escher Marwick PLC at 30 April
2020, the company recorded a loss of GBP 624 on interest income of 5,095,452. There are no further communications or news
surrounding the notes. Payment of coupons has not yet occurred.
The valuation of collateral is difficult. Hence given the long term of the security, the opaqueness of the Resort Group business
and the absence of any coupon payments there is an inherent probability of default. Considering these factors and the likely
impact of the COVID 19 situation the Directors believe a valuation of NIL is warranted.
IPO Capital 7.25% 03/31/2022
Cost:
GBP 400,000
Fair Value 2020: GBP Nil (2019: GBP Nil)
% of NAV:
0.00%
The directors of IPO Capital made an impairment provision of GBP 4.5 million against the company’s largest investment, Incept
Holdings (BVI) Ltd, effectively writing down the value of the investment to zero until the time of its listing, which has so far
taken a considerable time. In the accounts ending March 2019 they made further impairment provisions against another
investment in Fast Finance 24 and a subsidiary IPO Capital Partners of £543,000 and £148,000 respectively.
In the financial statement for the period ended 30 March 2019, the company reported a loss after tax of GBP -644,120 on
turnover of GBP 99,310. The revaluation of the investment portfolio including impairment provision against Fast Finance 24
and IPO Capital Partners resulted in the NAV of IPO Capital being reduced from GBP 406,751 to GBP -237,369.
The financial accounts up to 29 March 2020 are overdue. Furthermore, there has been very little feedback from the issuer in
respect of an missed interest payment. The loan at this point appears seriously impaired and recovery is very uncertain.
Correspondence with the issuer on 4 March 2020 suggests that the security has no recovery value due to the CEO suffering from
serious health complications.
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Progression Escher Marwick Plc 5.50% 10/17/36 Corp.
Cost:
GBP 1,385,631
Fair Value 202: GBP Nil (2019: GBP Nil)
% of NAV:
0.00%
The security (a medium-term note) is issued by a special purpose vehicle used for funding investments in the property and
renewable energy sectors. While the note is secured there is no description in the prospectus of the underlying collateral. The
security is priced daily on the Frankfurt exchange but there is little or no trading volume.
A deferral of coupon payments was announced on May 11, 2018 and since mid-2019, the issuer has provided regular updates
stating the following: “Escher Marwick Plc (the "Issuer") announces that interest payments due on the Notes on 13 May 2018,
13 November 2018, 13 May 2019 and 13 November 2019 were not made in full and only partially paid. This is due to a shortfall
in sums received by the Issuer in respect of assets held by it as security for the Notes. The Issuer's current assets comprise a
minority interest in a number of corporate bonds. A number of such corporate bonds are currently being restructured following
defaults and will either be refinanced or deferred to allow underlying assets to be commercialised.”
No further coupon payments have been received.
In pricing at zero consideration has been given to the opaqueness of the collateral of the security, the fact the security is in
default and that further coupon payments appear unlikely.
This holding is also impacted by the COVID 19 situation noted above.
Ballarat Property Plc 5.50% 31/12/2025
Cost:
GBP 159,634
Fair Value 2020: GBP Nil (2019: GBP Nil)
% of NAV:
0.00%
Ballarat announced an extraordinary resolution to wind up on 2019-05-29 (posted on Companies House on 17 June 2019). The
investments of £1.2 million shown in the latest financial statements of the year ended 31 March 2018 are a loan at an annual
interest rate of 9% to a related party, Affinity Developments Ltd, which is in administration.
Ballarat, along with Apollo Commercial Property, holds a fixed charge over Affinity’s 50% stake in a subsidiary – Chessington
View Ltd.– which holds rights to an empty plot of land of 27 acres in London which is awaiting planning permission. There is
no indication of the estimated value of this land although, if planning permission were to be obtained, the land could worth
between £20-£30m. The value of the land is likely to be dramatically reduced if planning permission is not obtained and the
likelihood of receiving such permission is limited as the land is in the green belt, which is subject to government protection.
Ballarat has stopped reporting financial statements after 31 March 2018. Liquidators have been named (Quantuma). It transpired
from communication with the liquidator that recovery from existing assets will be very low and probably nil after allowing for
the expenses associated with the liquidation.
Apollo Commercial Property Plc 5.00% 31/12/2025
Cost:
GBP 153,069
Fair Value 2020: GBP Nil (2019: GBP Nil)
% of NAV:
0.00%
Apollo Commercial Properties plc announced an extraordinary resolution to wind up on 2019-05-29 (posted on Companies
House on 17 June 2019). The loan of £1.5 million at 9% annual interest shown in the latest financial statements of the year
ended 28 February 2018 is to a related party, Affinity Developments Ltd, which is in administration. Apollo Commercial
Property holds a charge over Affinity’s 50% stake in a subsidiary – Chessington View Ltd.– which holds rights to an empty plot
of land of 27 acres in London which is awaiting planning permission. There is no indication of the estimated value of this land
although, if planning permission were to be obtained, the land could worth between £20-£30m.The value of the land is likely to
be dramatically reduced if planning permission is not obtained and the likelihood of receiving such permission is limited as the
land is in the green belt, which is subject to government protection.
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The company has stopped reporting financial statements after 28 February 2018. Liquidators have been named (Quantuma). It
transpired from communication with the liquidator that recovery from existing assets will be very low and probably nil after
allowing for the expenses associated with the liquidation.
Via Developments 7.00% 19/10/2020
Cost:
GBP 938,085
Fair Value 2020: GBP Nil (2019: GBP Nil)
% of NAV:
0.00%
The proceeds of the Via Developments 7% debenture have been used to fund property investments in the UK property market
with a primary focus in the residential property in the Manchester/North West region of England. In comparison to other illiquid
securities there has been some albeit very low trading and the fund was able to sell part of its position at unit price of 87 prior
to suspension.
The price oscillated between 100 and 85 in 2018 but at the beginning of 2019 fell precipitously to 65. This decline was followed
by a suspension of trading in the security which was triggered by the announcement on 1 March that the company was delaying
the publication of its financial statements and undergoing a major refinancing. Following the suspension, we were informed to
correspondence relating to the debenture between certain investors and the CEO of Via Developments that pending funding for
a large project being drawn down the publication of the audited accounts of the company would be delayed, resulting in a
temporary suspension of the bonds. The debenture has always paid its coupon due at end-year (in 2019, £ 67,224.36).
The Company published unaudited accounts for March 2019. Losses over the previous six months amounted to a further
£283,576 bringing total net liabilities to £587,545. The risk of default or a request to restructure unless the bond can be refinanced
appears quite significant. On 21 February 2020 we were informed that Via Developments had been served a winding up petition
by HMRC. A liquidator was appointed on the 22nd June 2020. Accordingly, the market value has been debased to nil.
The bond has matured in the period and as expected no payment was received.
Konstanz Finance Ltd. Aug 21 5.525%.
Cost:
GBP 1,252,000
Fair Value 2020: GBP Nil (2019: GBP Nil)
% of NAV:
0.00%
Konstanz Finance Ltd. Aug 23 6.25%
Cost:
GBP 589,000
Fair Value:
GBP Nil (2019: GBP Nil)
% of NAV:
0.00%
The issuer is a special purpose securitization vehicle. The security was suspended from trading on Euronext Dublin on 11
February 2019 for non-publication of annual and half yearly financial reports. The prices are published daily on Bloomberg
(BVAL) but there is no trading in the security. The valuation of the administrator prior to the suspension of the fund was close
to par.
There is no information forthcoming on this issuer or the issuer group, and on the current value of the underlying assets of the
secured note after 2017. Valuations of underlying assets was provided at the issuance. It does not appear that the projects for
which issuance was foreseen have been started and there is no sign of activity and potentially there may be a significant deb t
overhang.
Attempts have been made to contact the issuer and the board of directors earlier this year initially through the law firm
(Greenwood) and subsequently through the registrars and administrators in Guernsey. All service providers have resigned.
Informal discussions suggested that the assets of Konstanz were in a loan to a company in financial distress which held real
estate and was currently undergoing restructuring. We could not ascertain if there was any scope for recovery.
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Further correspondence did not yield any additional information.
In the absence of any information it would be advisable to write down this security to nil.
Energy Circle 6.50% 01/12/2023
Cost:
GBP 151,000
Fair Value 2020: GBP Nil (2019: GBP Nil)
% of NAV:
0.00%
On the 27th April 2020 a voluntary liquidator was appointed and a resolution to wind up was filed. A statement of affairs filed
on 11th June 2020 indicates there are zero assets for distribution to creditors.
The following security was redeemed.
ETI Securities Plc
Cost:
GBP 1,216,674
Fair Value 2020: GBP Nil (2019: GBP Nil)
The security at end of December was in default. The issuer ETI Securities Plc states in the issuing memorandum that the proceeds
are invested in Loan Note issued by Christianson Property Capital Limited. The Financial Statements of the Property company
at April 2017 recorded total assets (net of current liabilities) of GBP 5.8 million. Creditors falling due after more than one year
were GBP 10.5 million. The company’s accounts for the year ended August 2018 reported total assets (net of current liabilities)
of GBP 6,811,874 with creditors falling due after more than year amounting to GBP 11,455,681 and overall loss of GBP 4,643,807.
On 6 November 2018 the issuer posted a Board Resolution that a buy back of the ETI units would be set in place. The terms of
the buyback were not published. The written down value of the security at end-2018 based on the assumption that roughly 40%
of the outstanding loan would be recovered on the basis of it only been 70% of that shown in the Christiansen balance sheet.
Since end-December 2018 there was no further information issued by the Company and the issuer. There was no reply to
Correspondence sent to the issuer. In light of the opaqueness of the issuer and the lack of any information, it was deemed
appropriate that the value of the position should be completely written off. The value was therefore reduced to zero on 31st
December 2019.
In May 2020 a nominal amount of £3.5 per unit was received on this and the position was fully redeemed.
ORGANIC BOND Fund

Fair value

31 December 2019
Financial assets measured at fair value
Investments in funds
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Level 1
US$

Level 2
US$

Level 3
US$

Total
US$

-

-

734,993
734,993

734,993
734,993
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At 5 November 2020, the Organic Long/Short Alpha Fund level 3 securities valued at US$ Nil include the below holdings:
2019
Description

USD Fair Value

% of NAV

-

-

Ethika Sustainable Impact Fund GBP Class B
Ethiqo Green Energy Plc 7.00% 31/12/2026
ETI Securities PLC
IPO Capital Plc 7.25% 31/03/2022
Progression Escher Marwick Plc 5.50% 17/10/2036
Via Developments 7.00% 19/10/2020
Ethika Sustainable Impact Fund GBP Class B
Cost:
US$ 443,065
Fair Value:
US$ Nil (2019:US$ 152,151)
% of NAV:
0.00%
ETI Securities PLC
Cost:
US$ 238,299
Fair Value:
US$ Nil (2019: US$ Nil)
% of NAV:
0.00%
IPO Capital 7.25% 03/31/2022
Cost:
US$ 138,241
Fair Value:
US$ Nil (2019: US$ Nil)
% of NAV:
0.00%
Via Developments 7.00% 19/10/2020
Cost:
US$ 581,015
Fair Value:
US$ Nil (2019: US$ Nil)
% of NAV:
0.00%
Progression Escher Marwick Plc 5.50% 10/17/36 Corp.
Cost:
US$ 250,850
Fair Value:
US$ Nil (2019: US$ Nil)
% of NAV:
0.00%
Ethiqo Green Energy Plc 7.00% 31/12/2026 (New name: Tristone Green Energy from on 2 June 2017)
Cost:
US$ 250,838
Fair Value:
US$ Nil (2019: US$ Nil)
% of NAV:
0.00%

The issuer is insolvent though has not yet been dissolved. December 2019 accounts have not been filed. There have been 6
resignations up to 2017. Total net equity as of December 2017 was GBP -378,000 and GBP -327,147 as of December 2018. The
funding was used to provide a loan to company Glanpower Energy UK Ltd which was dissolved on 5 December 2017 according
to Companies House. The valuation is nil.
Details of the above securities is outlined under Organic Bond Fund in this section of the financial statements.
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8.

Risk Management (continued)
(c) Market Risk (continued)
(iv) Fair value hierarchy of financial assets and liabilities (continued)
ORGANIC LONG/SHORT ALPHA Fund

Fair value

31 December 2019

Level 1
US$

Level 2
US$

Level 3
US$

Total
US$

-

-

152,151
152,151

152,151
152,151

Financial assets measured at fair value
Investments in funds

At 5 November 2020, the Mercantile Diversified Fund had no investment.
MERCANTILE DIVERSIFIED Fund

Fair value

31 December 2019

Level 1
GBP

Financial assets measured at fair value
Investments in government bonds
Investments in corporate bonds
Investments in equities
Investments in exchange traded fund

1,368,763
3,203,214
1,339,023
5,911,000

Level 2
GBP
-

Level 3
GBP
191,306
191,306

Total
GBP
191,306
1,368,763
3,203,215
1,339,022
6,102,306

The above level 3 securities valued at GBP191,306 include the below holdings:
2019
Description

% of NAV
Total

MBH Corporation PLC 19/10/2020

2.98%

The above level 3 security is valued at cost.
At 5 November 2020, the Mercantile Opportunities Fund had no investment.
MERCANTILE OPPORTUNITIES Fund
31 December 2019

Level 1
GBP

Financial assets measured at fair value
Investments in corporate bonds
Investments in equities
Investments in exchange traded fund
Investments in funds

2,996,333
1,447,475
271,249
4,715,057

Fair value
Level 2
Level 3
GBP
GBP
236,773
236,773

169,656
169,656

Total
GBP
169,656
2,996,333
1,447,475
508,022
5,121,486

The above level 3 securities valued at GBP169,656 include the below holdings:
2019
% of NAV
3.02%

Description
MBH Corporation PLC 19/10/2020
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8.

Risk Management (continued)
(c) Market Risk (continued)
(iv) Fair value hierarchy of financial assets and liabilities (continued)
As at 5 November 2020, the Long/Short Alpha Fund and the Global Bond Fund had no investment.
The following table shows a reconciliation of all movements in the fair value of financial instruments categorised with Level
3 between the beginning and the end of the reporting period.
ORGANIC BOND Fund

Level 3

Balance as at beginning of the period/year
Purchases
Sales
Net realised and movement in unrealised
Balance as at 5 November/31 December

2020
GBP
734,993
(734,993)
-

2019
GBP
9,709,320
4,198,943
(4,199,157)
(8,974,113)
734,993

Net Unrealised Balance

(734,993)

(6,917,242)

ORGANIC LONG/SHORT ALPHA Fund

Balance as at beginning of the period/year
Purchases
Sales
Net realised and movement in unrealised
Balance as at 5 November/31 December

Level 3
2020
2019
US$
US$
152,151
1,023,895
250,850
(250,871)
(152,151)
(871,723)
152,151

Net Unrealised Balance

(152,151)

MERCANTILE DIVERSIFIED Fund

(634,689)

Level 3
2020
2019
GBP
GBP
191,306
433,962
(72,782)
(198,683)
(118,524)
(43,973)
191,306

Balance as at beginning of the period/year
Purchases
Sales
Net realised and movement in unrealised
Balance as at 5 November/31 December
Net Unrealised Balance

25,386

MERCANTILE OPPORTUNITIES Fund

(25,386)

Level 3
2020
2019
GBP
GBP
169,656
391,734
(64,545)
(182,540)
(105,111)
(39,538)
169,656

Balance as at beginning of the period/year
Purchases
Sales
Net realised and movement in unrealised
Balance as at 5 November/31 December
Net Unrealised Balance

22,631
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the financial period from 1 January 2020 to 5 November 2020
8.

Risk Management (continued)
(c) Market Risk (continued)
(v)

Fair value hierarchy of financial assets and liabilities (continued)

The Manager has priced these investments taking into consideration all the above at what they believe to be the best estimate
of fair value as at 5 November 2020. If other prices are available, they may be different to those presented and those differences
could be material. Therefore, the realisable value of the Company’s investments may differ significantly from the fair values
recorded.
9.

Exchange Rates
The following exchange rates were used to translate assets and liabilities into the reporting currency as at 5 November 2020 and
31 December 2019.
2020
GBP
1.7102
1.1099
27.2244
1.0000
0.7633
10.1596
1.8030
1.1872
11.4075

Canadian Dollar
Euro
Mexican Peso
Great Britain pound
United States Dollar
Hong Kong Dollar
Australian Dollar
Swiss Franc
Swedish Krona

2019
GBP
1.7213
1.1813
25.1029
1.0000
0.7540
10.3310
1.8882
1.2819
12.4019

Canadian Dollar
Euro
Mexican Peso
Great Britain pound
United States Dollar
Hong Kong Dollar
Australian Dollar
Swiss Franc
Swedish Krona
10. Soft Commission
There were no soft commission arrangements affecting the Company during the financial period.
11. Contingent Liabilities

As at 5 November 2020 and 31 December 2019, there were no commitments or contingent liabilities.
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2020
USD
1.3055
1.1826
20.7819
1.3100
1.0000
7.7524
1.3730
0.9042
8.6942
2019
USD
1.2979
1.1227
18.9276
1.3263
1.0000
7.7920
1.4255
0.9678
9.3659

THE MULTI-MANAGER UCITS PLATFORM FUND PLC
Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the financial period from 1 January 2020 to 5 November 2020
12. Efficient Portfolio Management
The Company may employ investment techniques and FDI (Financial Derivative Instrument) for efficient portfolio management
of the assets of any Fund including hedging against market movements, currency exchange or interest rate risks under the
conditions and within the limits stipulated by the Central Bank under the Regulations and Notices and described below. The
Company may not leverage a Fund through the use of derivative instruments, i.e. the total exposure of a Fund, including but not
limited to, its exposure from the use of any derivative instruments, must not exceed the total net asset value of the each of the
Fund.
Efficient portfolio management means investment decisions involving transactions that are entered into for one or more of the
specific aims:
1. The reduction of risk;
2. The reduction of cost; or
3. The generation of additional capital or income for the UCITS with an appropriate level of risk, taking into account the risk
profile of the Company.
13. Reconciliation of net asset value
As at 5 November 2020, all Sub Funds have nil net asset value and nil asset value per Share.

ORGANIC BOND Fund

Net asset value per audited financial statements
Net asset value per approved valuation
Net asset value per Share as per approved valuation

ORGANIC LONG/SHORT ALPHA Fund

Net asset value per audited financial statements
Net asset value per approved valuation
Net asset value per Share as per approved valuation

Class A Institutional Shares
GBP
2019
GBP

Class A Retail Shares
GBP
2019
GBP

743,928
743,928
5.816

20,221
20,221
0.608

Institutional Shares GBP
2019
US$

Retail Shares GBP
2019
US$

173,624
173,624
1.505

4,957
4,957
1.732
Class B GBP
2019
GBP

MERCANTILE DIVERSIFIED Fund

Net asset value per audited financial statements
Net asset value per approved valuation
Net asset value per Share as per approved valuation

6,410,749
6,410,749
0.933
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13. Reconciliation of net asset value (continued)
Class B GBP
2019
GBP

MERCANTILE OPPORTUNITIES Fund

Net asset value per audited financial statements
Adjustments made:
Difference in respect of amortisation of deferred and organisational costs
Net asset value per approved valuation
Net asset value per Share as per approved valuation

5,618,704
8,721
5,627,425
0.889

14. Events during the period
During the period, Covid-19 was declared a global pandemic by the World Health Organisation. This led to significant sell
off in risk assets, global economic downturn and the deepest recession in half a century. Such economic impacts may have a
result prospectively on the Company’s financial statements and operations.
In light of the continuing volatility of financial markets resulting from the pandemic associated with Covid-19 virus and in order
to realise an orderly sale of the existing assets without any prejudice to the interest of the shareholders, the Board decided to
change the dealing frequency of the Mercantile Sub Funds from daily to fortnightly with effect from 26 March 2020.
On 23 March 2020, the Board of the Company and European and Global Investments Limited (the “Manager”), as manager of
the Mercantile Sub-Funds, were informed that, due to financial circumstances and developments beyond its control, the
Investment Manager of the Sub-Funds, Agincourt Financial Limited, anticipated entering into an orderly voluntary winding up
of its legal limited company status as from the 17th April 2020.
During the period between the 17 April 2020 and 14 May 2020, European and Global Advisers LLP was nominated to manage
the Mercantile Sub-funds on a day to day basis with a view to liquidating all the assets.
The Board of the Company in conjunction with the Manager took the decision that it is no longer financially viable to continue
to operate the Mercantile Diversified Fund and the Mercantile Opportunities Fund. Accordingly, these Sub Funds ceased
operations on 30th June 2020.
Certain non-material changes were made to the Supplement of the Organic Bond Fund and the Organic Long/Short Alpha Fund,
which were issued on 4 December 2019. The following paragraph inserted in place of the existing disclosure:
“The minimum viable size of the Fund is GBP 20 million. Should the Net Asset Value of the Fund fall below such amount,
the Directors may exercise their discretion to terminate and liquidate the Fund and redeem all of the Shares in issue in
accordance with the terms of the Articles.”
On 9 October 2020, the Board of the Company in conjunction with the Manager took the decision:



that it is no longer financially viable to continue to operate the Organic Bond Fund and the Organic Long/Short Alpha
Fund. Accordingly, these Sub Funds ceased operations on 5th November 2020;
to liquidate the Company and seek revocation of authorisation from the Central Bank.
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15. Subsequent events
Subsequent to the period end, the second wave of Covid-19 sprung up globally, leading to lockdown in many countries
worldwide with a negative impact on global economy. The announcement of vaccines of 95% efficacy to combat Covid-19
rebounded the market while the world leaders are executing necessary procedures to overcome the coronavirus.
To complete the liquidation of the Company, the Directors appointed Aisling Mellon of Fortis Advisory Limited as the
Liquidator to the Company.in accordance with Irish Companies Act 2014. While the appointment has been consented, it would
be effective from the date same is approved by the Shareholders of the Company. The Liquidator will take possession of the
Company and its assets, realise the assets, pay creditors and return the surplus monies to the Shareholders.
The outstanding Shares in the Organic Bond Fund and Organic Long/Short Alpha Fund have been redeemed after the period
end.
16. Approval of Financial Statements
The Financial Statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 25 January 2020.
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Disclosure of Remuneration
In line with the requirements of regulation 89 (3A) of the UCITS Regulations, The Multi-Manager UCITS Platform Fund plc (“the
Company”) is required to establish, implement and maintain a remuneration policy (the “Remuneration Policy”) which is in
accordance with the requirements of the UCITS Regulations, and the European Securities and Markets Authority's "Guidelines on
sound remuneration policies under the UCITS directive and under AIFMD" (the "ESMA Guidelines").
This Remuneration Policy sets out the remuneration policies for the Company and describes remuneration practices for the Company.
It ensures that any relevant conflicts of interest can be managed appropriately at all times and sets out practices for certain Identified
Staff, as defined below, that are consistent with and promote sound and effective risk management and do not encourage risk-taking
which is inconsistent with the risk profile, rules or instrument of incorporation of the Company. This Remuneration Policy is in line
with the business strategy, objectives, values and interests of the Company and the investors in the Company and includes measures
to avoid conflicts of interest.
Identified Staff
The UCITS Regulations require the Company to identify the categories of staff, including senior management, risk takers, control
functions and any employees receiving total remuneration that falls into the same remuneration bracket as senior management and
risk takers, whose professional activities have a material impact on the risk profile of the Company and categories of staff of the
entity to which investment management activities have been delegated, whose professional activities have a material impact on the
risk profiles of the Company.
The Company is controlled and managed by the Board, but does not currently have any staff. Accordingly, "Identified Staff" for
the purpose of this Remuneration Policy comprises the Board.
As the Board has delegated its investment management activities to the Investment Manager the Board has ensured that the
Investment Manager is subject to regulatory requirements on remuneration that are equally as effective as those applicable under the
UCITS Regulations and the ESMA Guidelines.
Variable Remuneration
Mr. Julian Alworth as a Directors of The Multi-Manager UCITS Platform Fund plc, have waived his right to receive a Director's fee
from the Company. The independent non-executive Director receive fixed remuneration of €20,000 per annum in respect of his
service. None of the Directors are currently in receipt of variable remuneration in respect of their services as Directors of the
Company. None of the Directors are currently in receipt of a pension from the Company. Mr. Julian Alworth and Mr John Bohan
are not independence directors. Mr. John Bohan charges director’s fee of €5,000 per annum per sub-fund.
The Company has determined that the fixed remuneration payable to the Directors who are not employees of The Multi-Manager
UCITS Platform Fund plc is (a) consistent with sound and effective risk management and does not encourage risk-taking which is
inconsistent with the risk profile, rules or instrument of incorporation of the Company and (b) in line with the business strategy,
objectives, values and interests of the Company and its shareholders. The nature of the Directors’ remuneration, being fixed and not
including any variable component and being determined by the Board as a whole, ensures that the Company appropriately manages
any conflicts of interest in respect of remuneration.
Remuneration Committee
The UCITS Regulations require self-managed investment companies that are significant in terms of their size, their internal
organisation and the nature, scope and complexity of their activities to establish a remuneration committee. Having considered these
criteria, the Company has determined that it is not significant in these respects and has not established a remuneration committee.
Disclosure
The Company shall comply with the disclosure requirements set out in the UCITS Regulations. The total amount of remuneration
for the financial year paid by the Company to its staff, the aggregate amount of remuneration broken down by the relevant categories
of employees (i.e. the Directors of the Company), a description of how the remuneration has been calculated and any material changes
to this Remuneration Policy shall be disclosed in the Company's annual report. Refer to “Variable Remuneration” section of this
Appendix for details.
Annual review
On an annual basis, and during 2018, the Board reviewed the terms of this Remuneration Policy and assess whether its overall
remuneration system operates as intended and is compliant with the obligations on remuneration policies as set out in the UCITS
Regulations. The Remuneration Policy will be updated by the Board as and when required.
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Portfolio Statement of ORGANIC BOND Fund:

Description
By geographic location

% of
net
Asset

Maturity

Units

Fair
Value
GBP

31/12/2023
31/12/2025
15/11/2036
31/12/2025
29/07/2021
23/06/2031
01/12/2023
13/01/2022
31/03/2022
17/10/2036

908,000
158,444
2,669,840
165,355
200,000
834,190
302
297,472
400
1,334,519

-

0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%

23/06/2031
19/10/2020

1,988,796
960,348

-

0.00%
0.00%

Guernsey
Konstanz Finance Ltd 5.53% 10/08/2021
Konstanz Finance Ltd 6.25% 10/08/2023

10/08/2021
10/08/2023

1,252,000
589,000

-

0.00%
0.00%

Virgin Islands, British
ADV Holding Ltd. 10.00% 03/12/2019

03/12/2019

2,425,000

-

0.00%

Total Corporate Bond

-

0.00%

Total Bond

-

0.00%

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Corporate Bond
Great Britain
All Saints Commercial 8.00% 31/12/2023
Apollo Commercial Property Plc 5.00% 31/12/2025
Audley Funding Plc 6.00 15/11/2036
Ballarat Property Plc 5.50% 31/12/2025
Carpe Valorem 7.00% 29/07/2021
Emplc 2016-4EU A 3.50% 23/06/2031
Energy Circle 6.50% 01/12/2023
Ethika Finance Plc 8.50% 13/01/2022
IPO Capital Plc 7.25% 31/03/2022
Progression Escher Marwick Plc 5.50% 17/10/2036
The Resort Grp Etp 1 GBP Series 2016-04 Emarwick
0.00% 23/06/2031
Via Developments 7.00% 19/10/2020

Description
By geographic location

% of
Net
Assets

Number of
Shares

Fair
Value
US$

881

-

0.00%

-

0.00%

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Listed Equity
Malta
ETI Securities Plc
Total Equity
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Portfolio Statement of ORGANIC BOND Fund:
Description
By geographic location

Number of
Shares

Fair
Value
GBP

net
Asset

8,401
14,828

-

0.00%
0.00%

-

0.00%

2020
GBP
54,296
(54,296)

2020
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%

-

0.00%

GBP
Fair
Value

% of total
Assets

54,296
54,296

0.00%
100.00%
100.00%

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Fund investment
Malta
Ethika Sustainable Impact Fund EUR Class A
Ethika Sustainable Impact Fund GBP Class B
Total investment fund

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Cash and cash equivalents
Other current assets
Net assets attributable to Holders of Redeemable
Participating Shares
Analysis of Total Assets
Transferable securities admitted to an official stock
exchange on a regulated market
Cash at bank
Total Assets
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Portfolio Statement of ORGANIC LONG/SHORT ALPHA Fund:
Description
By geographic location

% of
Net
Assets

Maturity

Units

Fair
Value
US$

31/12/2026
31/03/2022
17/10/2036
19/10/2020

200,000
100,000
195,320
449,007

-

0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%

Total Corporate Bond

-

0.00%

Total Bond

-

0.00%

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Corporate Bond
Great Britain
Ethiqo Green Energy Plc 7.00% 31/12/2026
IPO Capital PLC 7.25% 31/03/2022
Progression Escher Marwick Plc 5.50% 19/09/2036
Via Developments 7.00% 19/10/2020

Description
By geographic location

% of
Net
Assets

Number of
Shares

Fair
Value
US$

174

-

0.00%

-

0.00%

-

0.00%

-

0.00%

2020
US$

2020

31,244
(31,244)

0.00%
0.00%

-

0.00%

Transferable securities admitted to an official stock
exchange on a regulated market
Cash at bank

31,244

0.00%
100.00%

Total Assets

31,244

100.00%

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Listed Equity
Malta
ETI Securities PLC
Total Equity
Fund investment
Malta
Ethika Sustainable Impact Fund GBP Class B

3,424

Total investment fund

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Cash and cash equivalents
Other current assets
Net assets attributable to Holders of Redeemable
Participating Shares
Analysis of Total Assets
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* MERCANTILE DIVERSIFIED Fund:
List of top 20 Buys and Sells during the year 1st January 2020 to 5th November 2020
MAJOR PURCHASES
Wisdometree Short USD Long GBP
Ishares Global Gov Bnd-Distr
UK TSY 2% 2020 22/07/2020

GBP
377,349
360,436
260,601

UK TSY 4 1/4% 4.25% 07/06/2032
UK TSY 4 1/4% 4.25% 07/06/2032
US TREASURY N/B 2.75% 15/02/2028
US TREASURY N/B 4.5% 15/02/2036
Spdr Bbg Us Treasury
Ishares Barclays Treasury Bond 7-10 Gbp
US TREASURY N/B 4.5% 15/02/2036
Vanguard Usd Treasury ETF
WT Short Eur Long Gbp 5X Dly
Invesco Us Treasury Dist
Riocan Real Estate Invst Tr
Deutsche Telekom AG (GY)
Sirius Real Estate Ltd
Unipol Gruppo SPA
Television Francaise (T.F.1) EQ
Nos Sgps
Redrow Plc

259,394
247,207
203,855
202,944
200,744
200,136
163,036
148,831
135,957
132,834
121,061
120,933
120,696
120,394
120,192
120,097
120,080
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MAJOR SALES
Wisdometree Short USD Long GBP
UK TSY 4 1/4% 4.25% 07/06/2032
UK TSY 4 1/4% 4.25% 12/07/2027
TSY 2 1/2% 2020I/L STOCK 2.5%
16/04/2020
Ishares Global Gov Bnd-Distr
US TREASURY N/B 4.5% 15/02/2036
US TREASURY N/B 2.75% 15/02/2028
Spdr Bbg Us Treasury
Ishares Barclays Treasury Bond 7-10 GBP
UK TSY 2% 2020 22/07/2020
Vanguard USD Treasury ETF
Anhui Conch Cement Co Ltd-H
Sirius Real Estate Ltd
Wt Short Eur Long Gbp 5X Dly
Tate & Lyle Plc
Novartis AG-Reg (SW)
Glaxosmithkline Plc
Postal Savings Bank Of Chi-H
Invesco Us Treasury Dist
Shougang Fushan Resources Gr

GBP
663,893
543,351
530,770
488,046
484,417
474,242
460,448
413,490
410,539
322,385
271,475
268,524
267,946
262,557
237,676
237,498
236,031
235,865
234,663
234,005
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Significant Portfolio Movement (continued)
As at 5 November 2020
* MERCANTILE OPPORTUNITIES Fund:
List of top 20 Buys and Sells during the year 1st January 2020 to 5th November 2020
MAJOR PURCHASES
Ishares Core FTSE 100
Ishares Global Gov Bnd-Distr
Aptus Global Financials-Bi
Amazon.Com Inc
Melco Resorts & Entert-ADR

GBP
399,956
323,034
320,227
263,391
169,325

Playtech Plc
Ishares Bric 50 LN
Ishares Plc Ishares Markit Iboxx Corporate Bond
Lyxor Eur Corp Bond (GBP)
Spdr Bbg Barc 15+ Gilt
Wisdometree Short Usd Long Gbp
WT Sugar
Plus500 Ltd
Wt S&P 500 3X Daily Short
Barclays Plc
Ishares FTSE 250
Tbc Bank Group Plc
Legal & General Group Plc
Imperial Brands Plc
Vanguard Ftse Emerging Marke

169,144
150,007
144,492
143,967
142,253
140,672
132,695
124,540
122,202
116,188
113,968
111,804
111,196
109,613
103,938

MAJOR SALES
Ishares Core FTSE 100
Amazon.Com Inc
Aptus Global Financials-Bi
Ishares Global Gov Bnd-Distr
Spdr Bbg Barc 15+ Gilt
Ishares Plc Ishares Markit Iboxx Corporate
Bond
Ishares Bric 50 Ln
Lyxor Eur Corp Bond (GBP)
Melco Resorts & Entert-ADR
Playtech Plc
Plus500 Ltd
WT Sugar
Wisdometree Short USD Long GBP
Ishares FTSE 250
Be Semiconductor Industries
Imperial Brands Plc
Vanguard Ftse Emerging Marke
Mlp AG
NH Hotel Group SA
WT Short Eur Long Gbp 5X Dly

*- All Portfolio amalgamated trades above 1% of Net Asset Value as at 5 November 2020.
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GBP
744,846
514,805
492,493
425,104
320,499
300,447
286,826
285,382
282,016
245,828
244,148
240,967
238,179
214,488
205,730
205,176
200,749
195,281
193,793
193,240

